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NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 42
nd 

An nuai General Meeting of ROOP ULTRASON IX LIMITED (Formerly 

known as Roop Telsonic Ultrasonix Ltd. will be held at 803-C, 32, Corporate Avenue, Mahal lndustrial 

Estate, Off Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 093 on Monday, December 23, 2024 at 10:00 

a.m. (lndian Standard Time) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. ADOPTION OF THE AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s ), the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 
circulated to the Members, be considered and adopted." 
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2. Adoption of the audited consolidated financial statements:

Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification( s ), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31 st March, 2024 and the Report of the Auditors thereon, as circulated to the
Members, be considered and adopted."

3. Appointment of a director Mr. Kodur Rajagopalan Puthanvitil (DIN: 00592972), liable to retire
by rotation:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s ), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Kodur Rajagopalan Puthanvitil (DIN: 00592972), who retires by
rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director (Non-Executive ), of the Company
and shall be liable to retire by rotation."

4. To appoint M/s Parikh & Parikh as the statutory auditors of the company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s ), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Ru les, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the Rules made
thereunder as amended from time to time, M/s. Parikh & Parikh, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration Number 107526W), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to
hold office for a consecutive period of 5 (Five) years from the conclusion of thisAnnual General Meeting
(AGM) till the conclusion of the 4th AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2029 at such
remuneration plus Goods and Services taxes as applicable, reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses
etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and theAuditors.

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to do all acts, file necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and take all such steps
as may be considered necessary."

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

5. To consider and approve appointment of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi (DIN 00575030) as Managing
Director of the Company for a period of five years from January 01, 2025 to December 31,
2029:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a
SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 
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reenactment (s) thereof for the time being in force), and pursuant to Article 88 of Articles of 
Association of the Company, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for appointment 
of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi (OIN 00575030), who has completed the age of 72 years, as the Managing 
Director of the Company for a period of five (5) years from January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2029, on 
such terms and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening 
this AGM, with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said 
appointment as may be agreed and deemed fit between the Board and Dr. Anant S. Trivedi and 
during the continuation as a director he shall not be liable to retire by rotation during the period of 5 
(five) years upto December 31, 2029. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the 
Act, and other applicable provisions if any, in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any 
Financial Year of the Company du ring the term of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi as a Managing Director of the 
Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the payment of the 
remuneration, perquisites, allowances, benefits and amenities as set out in the Explanatory 
Statement annexed to the Notice as the Minimum Remuneration. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 
all acts, deeds, things, and sign all necessary documents, resolutions, copies, affidavits, applications 
for giving effect to this resolution and which is necessary to give effect to the aforesaid appointment 
including filing of the prescribed e-forms with the office of the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai." 

6. To consider and approve the related party transactions:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an 
ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and 
other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time 
being in force), approval of Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company to enter into contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transaction(s) with related parties within the 
meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem 
fit for a period of three years starting from 01

st 

April, 2024 to 31
st 

March, 2027, with respective related 
parties, relating to transactions, the details of which are more particularly set in Table-A below, provided 
that the aggregate amount/value of all such arrangements/transactions/contracts that may be entered 
into by the Company with the Related Parties and remaining outstanding at any one point in time shall 
not exceed the limits mentioned below during any one financial year, provided that the said 
transactions are entered into/ carried out on arm's length basis and on such terms and conditions as 
may be considered appropriate by the Board of Directors, 
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Table-A: 

Sr. No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Nature of 

Name of the Transactions/ArrangE Value of transaction 

Name of the Related Party 
Director/KMP who is ments/contracts as (Maximum per 

related and nature of per Section 188 of annum) 

their relationship the Companies Act, 

2013. 
Rs. 

RTUL Ultrasonix (Thailand) Co. Ltd. 
WhollyOwned 

Sale of goods and AM< Upto INR 5 Crore 
Subsidiarv 

RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. BHD. 
WhollyOwned 

Sale of goods and AMC Upto INR 5 Crore 
Subsidiarv 

Aditya A Trivedi 

Tetrasonix LLC 
Anant Trivedi, Rupa 

Commission paid Upto INR 1 Crore 
Trivedi, 

Karishma V. Tanna 

Karishma V. Tanna and 

Kay lmpex Pvt Ltd 
Anant Trivedi, Rupa Purchase of goods and 

Upto INR 50 Lakh 
Trivedi, Aditya A. Trivedi services. 

the relatives. 

Anant S. Trivedi, Rupa 

Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi 
A. Trivedi,

Rent paid Upto INR 20 Lakh 
Karishma V. Tanna 

Aditva A. Trivedi 

Anant S. Trivedi, Rupa 

Aditya A. Trivedi A. Trivedi, Salary Upto INR 1 Crore 

Karishma V. Tanna 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the 
Company, to sign, execute, amend, deliver all such agreements, documents, deeds or instruments 
as may be required in this regard, as well as amendments or supplements thereto including to 
delegate all or any of the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Director/official of 
the Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may, in their absolute 
discretion, deem necessary, proper or desirable for such purpose, and to make any filings, furnish 
any returns or submit any other documents to any regulatory or governmental authorities as may be 
required, and to give such directions and/or instructions as they may from time to time decide and any 
documents so executed and delivered or acts and things done or caused to be done shall be 
conclusive evidence of the authority of the Board in doing so and any document so executed and 
delivered or acts and things done or caused to be done prior to the date hereof are hereby ratified, 
confirmed and approved as the acts and deeds of the Board, as the case may be. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to settle any 
question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, 
deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this 
resolution." 

7. To consider and approve fees for professional assistance in continuing guarantee to be
offered by Dr. Trivedi:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an 
ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

------�------
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"RESOLVED THAT the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to pay 
fees to Dr. Ana nt S. Trivedi not exceeding Rs. 60,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Lakh only) for the period from 
1

st 

August, 2023 to 31
st 

March, 2024 for continuing to provide persona! guarantee for the various 
credit facilities availed from the Bank by the Company from time to time during the said period, which 
was initially given by Dr. Ana nt S Trivedi in his capacity as Managing Director of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to 
Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company, to sign, execute, amend, 
deliver all such agreements, documents as may be required from time to time. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to settle any 
question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, 
deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this 
resolution." 

Place : Mumbai 
Date 15

th 

October, 2024 

Registered Office: 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
Chairman & Director 
DIN: 00575030 

A/41, NanadKishore lndustrial Estate, off Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai -400 093. 

Corporate Office: 
803-C, 32, Corporate Avenue, Mahal lndustrial Estate, off Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai -400 093.

NOTES: 

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
setting out all material facts concerning the business and relevant details in respect of the above
resolution is enclosed.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at theAGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead
of himself and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

3. Pursuant to Section 105(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 19 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 a persan can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not
exceeding 50(fifty) in number and holding in aggregate not more than 1 0(ten) percent of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. ln the case of a Member holding more than 1 0(ten)
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, may appoint a single persan as
proxy and such a persan shall not act as a proxy for any other persan or shareholder. The holder of
proxy shall prove his identity at the time of attending the meeting.

4. Proxy form duly executed in order to be effective, must reach the registered office of the Company not
less than 48 heurs before the time of commencement of the AG M. Proxy form for theAGM is enclosed.
Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies etc., must be supported by appropriate
resolutions, KYC documents of the proxy holder and authority letter, as applicable.

5. The Members/Representative/ Proxy(ies) are requested to bring attendance slip, as enclosed, duly
filled in, together with their copy of the notice conven ing the AG M.

6. ln case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in order of names will
be entitled to vote.
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7. lnstitutional/ Corporate Members (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) intending to send their
authorized representative(s) pursuant to section 113 of the Act to attend the AGM are requested to
send to the Company, authority letter along with the KYC documents of the authorized
representative and a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective
specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the
AGM by email to secretarial@rtulgroup.com with a copy marked to the scrutinizer

cssharvarijoshi@gmail.com.
8. Du ring the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and

ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at
any time du ring the business hours of the Company, provided not less than three days' notice in writing
is given to the Company.

9 .  Members are requested to register their e-mail addresses in respect of electronic holdings with the
Depository through their concerned Depository Participants. Members who hold shares in physical
form and who have not registered / updated their email address with the Company are requested to
register / update can register / update their email address by sending e-mail on
secretarial@rtulgroup.com.

1 O. Members whose shares are in physical form are requested to kindly dematerialize the same at the
earliest with the Depository Participant pursuant to Rule 9A of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014.

11. Members may also note that Notice of the AGM will also be available on the Company's website
www.rtulgroup.com. The Notice of theAGM is being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose
e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories, unless any Member has requested
for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical
copies are being sent by the permitted mode. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also
be available at the Company's Registered Office in Mumbai for inspection du ring the normal business
hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive
such communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any
communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's e-mail on
secretarial@rtulgroup.com.

12. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the
Company:
a. E-mail id (for receiving notices and annual reports through e-mail id.)
b. Any change in address.
c. demise of any member as soon as possible.
d. PAN card copy for the record of the Company.

13. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the
Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also
advised not to leave their Demat account(s) dormant for long periodic statement of holdings should be
obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

14. The register of members and share transfer books shall remain closed from Monday, 16
th 

December,
2024 to Monday, 23

rd 

December, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purposeAGM.
15. The record date for determining the eligibility of the members to attend the AGM will be Friday, 13

th 

December, 2024.
16. Voting shall be conducted under the supervision of the Mrs. Sharvari Joshi, Practicing Company

Secretary (Membership No. A50292, COP No. 26145), scrutinizer appointed by the Company in their
Board Meeting held on 15

th 

October, 2024 and Scrutinizer decision on validity of vote shall be final.
17. A Route Map along with Prominent Landmark for easy location to reach the venue of AGM is annexed

hereto.
18. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM,

are requested to write to the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of commencement of the
AGM through email on secretarial@rtulgroup.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.
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19. The members are requested to notify change of address or change in the contact credentials if any, to
the Company's Registered Off ice and wri te to the Company through email  on
secretarial@rtulgroup.com.

EXPLANATORYSTATEMENT AS PERSECTION 102 (1) (a)AND (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 TO 
THE ACCOMPANYING NOTICE DATED 15

th 

OCTOBER, 2024. 

ITEMNO.5: 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi was appointed as Managing Director upto July 31, 2023. ln previous year, the Board 
proposed to extend the term of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi as Managing Director for a further period of five (5) years 
from August 01, 2023 to July 31, 2028, under Special Resolution, as he attained the age of 71 during the 
previous year. However, the proposed resolution for appointment was not approved as Special Resolution. 

Now, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 15, 2024 reconsidered proposing the 
appointment of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi as Managing Director for a period of five (5) years from January 1, 2025 to 
December 31, 2029 in view of availing his expertise, leadership qualities, guidance for the benefit, growth 
and interest of the Company. The Members may also note that Dr. Anant S. Trivedi is a qualified BE, M.Sc., 
P.H.D. (U.K.) and has been working with the Company since inception. The Company has always seen 
growth and new achievements under his strong leadership. ln view of considering his expertise, long 
experience in the business, corporate management and the leadership quality, the Company needs his 
guidance as Managing Director, even after him crossing the age of 70 years. Dr. Anant S. Trivedi, has 
attained the age of 72 years on June 19, 2024, accordingly, approval of the Members is sought for passing 
the resolution proposed at Item No. 5 as a Special Resolution in terms of Section 196(3) of the Act. 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi, satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act as also conditions set 
out under Section 196(3) of the Act for his re-appointment. He is not disqualified from being appointed as 
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. However, the proposed remuneration may exceed limits specified 
in part 11 of Schedule V of the Act and hence, if the proposed resolution is carried by the members by passing 
ordinary resolution, the board may approach Central Government for approval of Dr. Trivedi's appointment 
as Managing Director including his remuneration. 

The Brief profile of Dr. Anant Suryakant Trivedi is set forth in Annexure A, annexed to this Notice. ln the 
opinion of the Board, Dr. Anant Suryakant Trivedi fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules 
thereunder for appointment as the Managing Director. 

The appointment of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi as Managing Director and the remuneration proposed to be paid or 
granted to him are in conformity with the provisions and requirements of Schedule V to the Act. Accordingly, 
no approval of the Central Government is required to be obtained to appoint Dr. A. S. Trivedi as Managing 
Director. 

Approval of members is sought for the appointment of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi as Managing Director of the 
Company and his continuation as a director not liable to retire by rotation in terms of the applicable provisions 
of the Act and the relevant Articles of Association. 

The requisite details and information pursuant to the provisions of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings 
issued by the lnstitute of Company Secretaries of lndia and the information required to be disclosed to the 
shareholders as per Schedule V to the Act is provided in Annexure to this Notice. 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice. Mrs. Rupa Trivedi, Mrs. 
Karishma Tanna and Mr. Aditya Trivedi being related to Dr. Anant S. Trivedi, may be deemed to be interested. 
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The other relatives of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi may be deemed to be interested in the resolution, to the extent of 
their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company. 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their 
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the 
Members. 

The main terms and conditions for the appointment of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi as Managing Director (MD), are as 
follows: 

1. Period-From 1
st

January, 2025 to 31
st

December, 2029.

Il. Remuneration -
a) Salary:

The Employee shall be paid a monthly basic salary of Rs. 5,00,000.00 (Rupees Five Lakhs
only) for the period (from 1

st 

January, 2025 to 31
st 

December, 2025).
The annual increment up to 5% of basic salary, which will be effective April 1, each year, will be
decided by the Board based on Company's performance and individual performance. ln
addition to the Basic salary, the abovementioned Employee shall be entitled to one month's
salary as Bonus and Performance Linked lncentive/Bonus, Long-Term lncentive and/or
Commission based on certain performance criteria laid down by the Board and approved by the
Board and the following allowances, perquisites, benefits, facilities and amenities as per the
Policy / Rules of the Company or to the absolute discretion of the Board and subject to the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Incarne Tax Act, 1961 and any
amendments thereto from time to time (collectively called "perquisites and allowances") and
the employee shall be at liberty to decide the salary components other than the basic salary
within the overall gross remuneration not exceeding 10,00,000/- per month /part thereof.

b) Benefits, Perquisites &Allowances:

Details of Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances are as follows: 

1. House RentAllowance subject to the ceiling namely 60% of the salary.
2. The Company shall also pay for actual expenses incurred on gas, electricity, water and furnishings and

perquisite value of which shall be valued as per Incarne Tax Ru les, 1962.
3. Medical reimbursement: Reimbursement of actual medical expenses incurred for self and family.
4. Leave Travel Concession: Reimbursement of actual expenses for self and family once in a year to and

from any places in lndia.
5. Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to maximum of 2 clubs will be allowed.
6. Premium on persona! accident insurance, premium on Life lnsurance Policy and premium on medical

claim policy for self and family. Family means the spouse, the dependent children and dependent parents.
7. Free use of car and driver.
8. Telephone facilities at residence.
9. Provident Fund: Company's contribution to provident fund/ superannuation fund not exceeding 27% of the

salary.
1 O. Gratuity payable at the rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service. 
11. The company shall pay commission to the Managing Director on net profits at such percent provided that

the total remuneration shall not exceed 5% of the net profit as calculated under the provisions of section
197 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.
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12. The Managing Director shall be entitled on full pay and allowance, as per rules of the Company, not more
than 30 days of leave for every year. The leave accumulated but not availed of can be encashed by him at
the end of his tenure.

13. ln the event of loss or inadequate profits, he shall be paid the above remuneration, except commission on
profits, provided that the total remuneration shall not exceed the ceilings mentioned in Schedule V of The
CompaniesAct, 2013.

c) Performance Linked Bonus:
As mentioned above, in addition to the Salary, Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances, Dr.
Anant Trivedi may be paid such remuneration by way of annual performance linked 
bonus. This performance linked bonus would be payable subject to the achievement of 
certain performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered 
appropriate from time to time by the Board. 

Ill. Minimum Remuneration: 

IV. 

V. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year 
during the currency of the tenure of Dr. Anant Trivedi the Company has no profits or its 
profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration, for a period of 5 years, by 
way of Salary, Benefits, Perquisites and Allowances and Performance linked bonus as 
specified above, subject to further approvals as required under Schedule V of the Act, 
or any modification( s) thereto. 

Nature of Duties -

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi shall during the term from shall perform such duties as the 
Company may require from time to time subject to the superintendence, control and 
direction of the Board of Directors of the Company and devote his whole time and 
attention and the utmost of his power, ski li and ability to the business of the Company. 

He shall not at any time hereafter without the consent in writing of the Company, except 
under legal process divulge or make public any of the secrets or the dealings of the 
Company which ought not be disclosed or made public. 

He shall be true and faithful to the Company in all his accounts, business dealings and 
transactions whatsoever and will at ail times when required render a true account 
thereof to the Company or to such persons as shall be authorised to receive them. 

He shall not become interested or otherwise concerned, directly or through his 
spouse and/or children or any other member of the family, in any selling agency of the 
Company. 

OTHER TERMS: 

The terms and conditions of the appointment of the Managing Director may be 
altered and varied from time to time by the Board, in its discretion, deem fit, 
irrespective of the limits stipulated under Schedule V to the Act, or any amendments 
made hereinafter in this regard in such manner as may be agreed between the Board 
and the Managing Director, subject to such approvals as may be required. 

Either party may terminate this agreement by giving to the other party 3 months' notice 
of such termination or by surrendering 3 months' remuneration in lieu thereof. 
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If the Managing Director commits any breach of this Agreement or shall neglect to attend to his duties or 
otherwise conduct himself in a manner detrimental to the interests of the Company, the Company may 
dismiss the Managing Director summarily from his employment and terminate thisAgreement. 

If and when the Agreement expires or is terminated for any reason whatsoever, Dr. Anant S. Trivedi will 
cease to be the Managing Director. If at any time, Dr. Anant S. Trivedi ceases to be a Director of the 
Company for any reason whatsoever, he shall cease to be the Managing Director, and the Agreement 
shall forthwith terminate. 

Annexure: 
The Particulars of the information, pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V, Part Il, Section Il, clause 
(A} of the Act are as under: 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION:
Nature of lndustry:

The Company is engaged in the manufacture of ultrasonic equipment.

Date or expected date of commencement of Commercial Production:

Not applicable (Company is an existing company).

1. ln case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per
project

2. approved by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus: NotApplicable.
3. Financial performance based on given indicators:

Financial performance of the Company du ring the last 3 Financial Years and the year under review is 
as under: 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 {Rs.) March 31, 2022 
{Rs.) {Rs.) 

Revenue from 
67,45,61,473 54,76,98,506 56,44,02,062 

Operation 

Other lncome 1,13,14,717 2,20,91,651 94,72,726 

Total lncome 68,58,76, 190 56,97,90, 157 57,38,74,788 

Profit Before Tax 9,31,58,063 5,25,56, 779 4,00,36,228 

Profit After Tax 6,51,44,840 3,88,80,831 2,92,09,927 

4. Foreign investments or collaborations, if any:

The Company has total foreign investments of Rs. 8,35,987 /- in Two Wholly owned 
Subsidiaries. There was no other foreign collaboration/investment du ring the year 2023-2024. 

------�---------
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Il. Information about the appointee: 

Name of the appointee 

Age 

Qualifications 

(1) Background details

(2) Past remuneration:

(3) Recognition or awards

(4) Job profile and his suitability

(5) Remuneration proposed

(6) Comparative remuneration profile
with respect to industry, size of
the company, profile of the
position and persan (in case of
expatriates the relevant details
would be with respect to the
country of his origin)

(7) Pecuniary relationship direc tly or 
indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial
personnel [or other director], if
any. 

Ill. OTHER INFORMATIONS: 

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate
profits

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be
taken for improvement

(3) Expected increase in
productivity and profits in 
measurable terms

Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 

72 years 

BE, M.Sc., P.H.D. (U.K.) 

42 years of Research & Development experience in the 
field of core Ultrasonic Technology. 

During Financial year 2023 -24, Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
received remuneration of Rs. 25,60,000/- (lndian Rupees 
Twenty Five Lakhs and Sixty Thousand Only) as the 
Managing Director upto 31 st July, 2023. He ceased to be 
MD on and after 1 st August, 2023. Thereafter, he has not 
been paid any remuneration for the period from 1 st 

August, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 by the Company. 

Not Applicable. 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi, aged 72, is a qualified BE, M.Sc., 
P.H.D. (U.K.) and has been working with the Company 
since inception. Accordingly, looking at his expertise and 
long experience of business and corporate management 
the Board deems it fit to re-appoint him. 

As mentioned above. 

The remuneration proposed to be paid to Dr. Anant S. 
Trivedi is commensurate with the size of the Company, 
nature of its operations and is in line with the industry 
standards. 

Dr.A nant S. Trivedi does not have any pecuniary 
relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, 
except for receiving remuneration as a Managing 
Director upto 31 st July, 2023. Thereafter he is not getting 
remuneration in any form. He holds 7,17,130 (22,09,304 
equity shares post rights issue) of Rs. 10/- each of the 
Company. 

There is inadequacy of profit in the Company to pay 
abovementioned remuneration to Dr. Trivedi as though 
the Company has capacity to meet the exp enses but 
the profit criteria and the managerial remuneration to 
be paid might be in excess of the li mit provided in 
Schedule of the Act and hence, to meet the criteria 
there miqht be inadequacv of profit. 
There a re vigorous process to improve the sales and 
reduce the cost price which will directly improve the 
profitability. 
There are bright chances to increase the productivity by 
30% of the current status. 

IV. The profile and specific areas of expertise of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi are provided as Annexure A to this
Notice.

------�--
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This explanatory statement and the resolution at Item No. 5 may also be read and treated as disclosure in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 190 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. 

AnnexureA 
Details of Directors seeking Appointment /re-appointment at the An nuai General Meeting 

Name of the Director 

DIN 

Date of Birth 

Age 

Qualifications 

Experience and Expertise 

Date of first appointment on the 

Board 

Shareholding 

Relationship with other Directors, 

Manager and KMP 

Number of Board meetings attended 

during the financial year (2023-24) 

Directorship held in other 

Companies 

Chairmanships /Membership of 

Committees in other Companies* 

*Membership/Chairmanship of Audi1 

and Stakeholders Relationship

Committee only is provided

Terms and Conditions of 

appointment/re-appointment along 

with details of remuneration sought 

to be paid and remuneration last 

drawn by such person. 

Justification for choosing the 

appointees for appointment and 

reappointment as Directors 

Dr. Anant Suryakant Trivedi 

005Z5030 

19.06.1952 

72 

B.E., M.S., Ph.D.

41 years 

29th March, 1982 

7,17, 130 (post right issue 

22,09,304 Equity Shares) 

Husband of Mrs. Rupa Anan1 

Trivedi, Father of Aditya Anan1 

Trivedi and Father-in-law of Mrs. 

Karishma Vipul Tanna. 

7 

3 Companies 

NIL 

As mentioned above 

During Financial year 2023-24, 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi received 

remuneration of Rs. 25,60,000/ 

(lndian Rupees Twenty Five 

Lakhs and Sixty Thousand Only) 

as the Managing Director upto 

31st July, 2023 

40 years of Research & 

Development experience in the 

field of core Ultrasonic 

Technoloav 

Mr. Kodur Rajagopalan 

Puthanvitil 

00592972 

15.01.1952 

72 

C.S., LLB.

40 years 

091h October, 2006 

NIL 

NA 

7 

NIL 

NIL 

Re-appoi ntment - retirement

bv rotation. 

Remuneration drawn for 2023-

24 Rs. 2,00,000/-

To have the knowledgeable 

Board member in Company. 

------�--
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ITEMN0.6: 

TOAPPROVE RELATED PARTY TRA NSACTIONS: 

The member's approval is sought in the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the related party 
transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company's business is growing and to have 
competent price and capable leadership, your Company is having transaction(s) with related parties as 
mentioned herein. Ali the proposed transactions shall be in the ordinary course of business and at the arm's 
length. The Directors of your Company and their relatives are directors/shareholders in Related Parties as 
mentioned herein. Section 188 of the Act and the applicable Rules framed thereunder provide ceiling on 
aggregate value of transaction(s) amounts for various transactions that are entered into with Related Party, 
beyond which, if such transactions are entered into with the related party/ies, will require prior approval of 
shareholders through ordinary resolution. Further, in accordance with the (i) fourth proviso to Section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the shareholders is not required to such transactions which are entered 
into by the company in its ordinary course of business and are on an arm's length basis. Ali the transactions 
entered/to be entered into by the Company with the Related Parties are in its ordinary course of business and 
are on an arm's length basis and (ii) fifth proviso to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the 
shareholders is not required to such transactions which are entered into by the company and its wholly owned 
subsidiary whose accounts are consolidated with such holding company and placed before the shareholders 
at the general meeting for approval. So, the transactions entered into under Section 188 of the Act, between 
Company and its Related Parties and wholly owned subsidiaries are not required to have shareholders' 
approval. However, as a good corporate governance, and to ensure the transparency in all transactions and 
contracts with the related parties of the Company, the Board seeks approval of the shareholders for the said 
Related Party/ies Transaction(s) entered/proposed to be entered into by your Company in each financial year. 

Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, 
particulars of the transaction( s) with Related Parties are as follows: 

The Nature, material terms, duration, monetary value and Name of the Director/KMP 

Name of the Related Party particulars of the contract or arrangement. For period who is related and nature 

from 1st April, 2024 to 3ft March, 2027. of their relationship 

The transaction upto Rs. INR 5 Crore to be entered in each 

financial year at the price to be mutually agreed upon b) 

RTUL Ultrasonix (Thailand 
Related Party and the Board of Directors of the Company from 

time to time in ordinarycourse of business and at arm's lengtt Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
Co. Ltd. 

or at prevailing market price. 

Particulars of transactions/Arrangements/contracts: 

sale of qoods and AMC upto INR Rs. 5 Crore in each vear. 

The transaction upto Rs. INR 5 Crore to be entered in each 

financial year at the price to be mutually agreed upon b) 

Related Party and the Board of Directors of the Company from 

RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. BHD. time to time in ordinarycourse of business and at arm's lengtt Wholly Owned Subsidiary 

or at prevailing market price. 

Particulars of transactions/Arrangements/contracts: 

sale of qoods and AMC uoto INR Rs. 5 Crore in each vear. 

------�-----------
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The Nature, material terms, duration, monetary value and Name of the Director/KMP 

Name of the Related Party particulars of the contract or arrangement. For period who is related and nature 

from 1st April, 2024 to 3ft March, 2027. of their relationship 

The transaction upto INR Rs. 1 Crore to be entered in each 
financial year at the price to be mutually agreed upon by 

Anant S. Trivedi - Partner o1 
Related Party and the Board of Directors of the Company from 

the said LLC. 
time to time in ordinarycourse of business and at arm's length 
or at prevailing market price. 

Tetrasonix LLC 
Rupa A. Trivedi - relative of 

Particulars of transactions/Arrangements/contracts: 
partners. 

Aditya S. Trivedi Partner of 
the said LLC. 

Commission upto INR Rs. 1 Crore in each year. 
Karishma V. Tanna -

Director & shareholder; 

The transaction upto INR Rs. 50 lakh to be entered in each 
financial year at the price to be mutually agreed upon by Karishma V. Tanna -
Related Party and the Board of Directors of the Company from Director & shareholder; 
time to time in ordinary course of business and at arm's lengtt . 

Kay lmpex Pvt Ltd Anant Trivedi, Rupa Trivedi, 
Aditya A. Trivedi - the 

relatives. 
Particulars of transactions/Arrangements/contracts: 

Purchase of goods and services upto INR Rs. 50 lakh in each 
vear. 

The transaction upto INR Rs. 20 lakh to be entered in each 
financial year at the price to be mutually agreed upon by Rupa A. Trivedi - Whole-timE 
Related Party and the Board of Directors of the Company from Director (WTD) 
time to time in ordinary course of business and at arm's lengtt . 

Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi 
Relatives of WTD -

To take on rent/Lease the gala premises: upto INR Rs. 20 lakh 
Anant S. Trivedi, 

in each year. 
Karishma V. Tanna 

Aditya A. Trivedi 

Relatives of VP 

Mr. Aditya Trivedi is proposed to be re-appointed as Vice 
Rupa A. Trivedi-Whole-time 

President of the Company w.e.f. for a period of three years 
Director (WTD) 

starting from 01s1 April, 2024 to 3f1 March, 2027, at a total 
Mr. Aditya A Trivedi - remuneration including perquisites and other benefits, bonus Anant S. Trivedi - Chairman 

performance linked Bonus, commission, if any, not exceedin� & Director 
1 crore per year in ordinary course of business and at arm's 

length. Karishma V. Tanna - Director 

Note: Ali the details and information are given in this Explanatory Statement, there is no other information relevant or 
important for the members to take a decision on the proposed resolution. 

------�--
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The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolution as set out at item no. 6 of this Notice as an 
Ordinary Resolution. 

The Directors of the Company or their relative/s, as mentioned above are concern or interested, directly or 
indirectly, financially or otherwise, in the resolution as mentioned above and upto the extent of their 
shareholding, if any, in the resolution. 

ITEM NO. 7: 

TOAPPROVE FEES TO DR.ANAN T S. TRIVEDI: 

Dr. Ana nt S. Trivedi is the promoter director of the Company and is leading the Company successfully since the 
incorporation. Under his leadership the Company has grown multifold in technology development, business 
growth in local and international markets. He has served the Company as Managing Director with dedication 
and sincerity. The Company needs funds and financial assistance from the Banks for the various fund 
requirements for it's principal business activities and Dr. Anant S. Trivedi gives the persona! guarantee for the 
same. 

Dr. Trivedi's term as Managing Director expired on 31
st 

July, 2023 and he was proposed for re-appointed as 
Managing Director in the previous Annual General Meeting held on 30

th 

September, 2023 which required him 
to be appointed by shareholders by passing special resolution in pursuant to the provisions of Section 196(3) 
of the CompaniesAct, 2013, on him attaining the age of71 years. 

However, the proposed resolution could not be passed as Special Resolution and Dr. Trivedi could not be re­
appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for further period and consequently he is not remunerated 
by the Company as Managing Director or Director since 1

st 

August, 2023. Though not being the Managing 
Director and not been remunerated by the Company, Dr. Trivedi has shown undaunted zeal and passion for the 
business of the Company and serving the Company in his full capacity and time. 

As mentioned earlier, the Company is availing financial assistance from the Bank from time to time since quite 
some years and Dr. Trivedi and Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi, the whole-time Director of the Company are giving the 
persona! guarantee for the same. At present the Company's current exposure is Rs. 20 Crores (revised in 
current year 2024-2025) supported by the persona! guarantee given by Dr. Trivedi and Mrs. Rupa Trivedi. ln 
given circumstances where Dr. Trivedi is not Managing Director and not getting any remuneration from the 
Company for his services, the Board reviewed that if financial assistance from Bank could only be supported 
by persona! guarantee of Mr. Rupa Trivedi, but it is found inadequate and the financial assistance availed by 
the Bank needs the persona! guarantee of Dr. Trivedi as well. 

The Board also referred to the RBI circular wherein it mandates that in terms of Para 2.2.9 (C) of RBl's Circular 
No. RBl/2021-22/121 dated 9th November, 2021, no consideration by way of commission, brokerage fees or 
any other form, can be paid to the director by the company, directly or indirectly, in lieu of providing persona! 
guarantee to the bank for borrowing credit limits. lt further says that there may, however, be cases where the 
director, who had provided the guarantee, is no longer connected with the management but continuance of his 
guarantee is considered essential because the new management's guarantee is either not available or is 
found inadequate, or there may be other exceptional cases. 

The members are requested to take a note that until now, neither Dr. Trivedi nor Mrs. Rupa Trivedi are paid any 
commission directly or indirectly by the Company for extension of their persona! guarantee. At present, there 
are exceptional circumstances wherein Mrs. Rupa Trivedi's guarantee is not enough to caver the credit 
exposure of the Company and continuance of Dr. Trivedi's persona! guarantee is considered essential. Dr. 
Trivedi with no remuneration and position in the Company except for being a director has willingly agreed to 

------�....----. 
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continue his persona! guarantee to the Bank for the Company's business need the Board believes that the 
Company shall not be taking circumstantial advantage by taking persona! guarantee of Dr. Trivedi to 
support the business of the Company, where he holds no position and not remunerated despite of devoting 
his full time. ln view of this the Board propose that in given circumstances, Dr. Trivedi, needs to be given 
fees for continuing to provide the guarantee already offered by Dr. Anant S. Trivedi as Managing Director 
despite he no longer being a managing director as no other director was willing to fill the said guarantees 
and not continuing the same would affect the banking limits and business of the Company. The said fees 
shall not exceed Rs. 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lakh only) for the period 1

st 

August, 2023 to 31
st 

March 
2024 for the persona! guarantee provided by him for the various credit facilities availed from the Bank by 
the Company from time to time and the said fees are paid on an arm's length basis. 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice. Mrs. Rupa Trivedi, Mrs. 
Karishma Tanna and Mr. Aditya Trivedi being related to Dr. Anant S. Trivedi, may be deemed to be interested 
in the resolution. 

The other relatives of Dr. Anant S. Trivedi may be deemed to be interested in the resolution, to the extent of 
their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company. 

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their 
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Place : Mumbai 
Date 15

th 

October, 2024 

Registered Office: 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
Chairman & Director 
DIN: 00575030 

A/41, NanadKishore lndustrial Estate, off Mahakali Caves Road,Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 093. 

Corporate Office: 
803-C, 32, Corporate Avenue, Mahal lndustrial Estate, off Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai -400 093.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 

Dear Shareholders, 

We are pleased to present our report on the business and operations of the company for the year 
ended March 31, 2024. 

* Results ofOperations: 

·Financial Results: (Rs. ln Lacs} 

Standalone Consolidated 

Particulars 
For the Year For the Year For the Year For the Year 

ended ended ended ended 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Total Revenue 6,858.76 5,697.90 6,897.98 5,775.7� 

Total Expenses 5,699.49 4,931.35 5,795.48 5,016.2, 

Profit before lnterest, 

Depreciation, Tax and 
1,159.27 766.56 1,102.50 759.5: 

Prior Period 

Adjustment 

Less: Finance Costs 85.86 107.01 85.89 107.01 

Less: Depreciation and 
141.83 133.98 142.08 134.3L 

amortization Expense 

Profit Before Tax 931.58 525.57 874.52 518.11 

Less : Tax Expense: 

Current Tax 241.62 144 241.78 144.0( 

Deferred tax liabilities 38.51 -7.24 38.51 -7.21.

Profit After Tax 

(Attributable to 651.45 388.81 594.23 381.4: 

Shareholder's) 

Earnings per Share 
9.35 11.01 8.5: 10.8( 

Basic and Diluted 

------�--
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Standalone 

During the year under review, the total revenue of your Company has increased from Rs. 5,697.91 
lakhs in the previous year to Rs. 6,858.76 lakhs. The Net Profit after Tax of your Company has 
increased in the current year to Rs. 651.45 lakhs as compared to a profit of Rs. 388.81 lakhs in the 
previous year. 

Consolidated 

During the year under review, the total revenue of your Company has increased from Rs. 5,775.80 
lakhs in the previous year to Rs. 6,897.98. The Net Profit afterTax of your Company has increased in 
the current year to Rs. 594.23 lakhs as compared to a profit of Rs. 381.42 in the previous year. 

Your Directors are hopeful for the bright future of the Company in the years to corne. 

► Appropriations:

• Dividend
As the Members are aware, the Company at present is going through the litigation for Rights Issue of
equity shares made du ring the year 2022-2023 and in view of the same, the Board of Directors is of
view that in the uncertainty of the total paid up equity capital of the Company, till the final order of the
Hon'ble NCLAT, it would be advisable to not recommend any dividend to the equity holders. the Board
of Directors of your Company do not recommend any Dividend for period ended 31 st March 2024.

• Transfer to Reserves
We propose to transfer Rs. 100 lacs to the General Reserve.

► Share Capital:
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is 97,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
aggregating to Rs. 975/- lakhs (lndian Rupees Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Lacs Only). The existing
Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company is 69,66,524 equity shares of Rs. 10/-each aggregating to Rs.
696.65 lakhs (lndian Rupees Six Hundred Ninety-Six lakhs Sixty-Five Thousand).

A) Issue of equity shares with differential rights: NIL
B) Issue of sweat equity shares: NIL
C) Issue of employee stock options: NIL
D) Provision of money by company for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for
the benefit of employees: NIL

► New Products / Projects:
Our company is strategically utilizing its expertise in producing machines based on ultrasonic
technology to its advantage. We are directing our efforts towards leveraging our core strength and
exploring new applications in the field of ultrasonics. We possess a vast pool of knowledge and
experience, which we are actively utilizing to delve into new areas of application in metallurgy, plastic
and metal welding, NOT and sonochemistry. ln this endeavor, we are collaborating with industry
leaders to tap into their expertise.
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Furthermore, we are capitalizing on our strong distribution network and business channels to 
anticipate a significant breakthrough. We believe that this breakthrough will not only contribute to our 
profitability but also enhance our standing in the market. As part of our growth strategy, we are 
actively seeking new opportunities in global markets to expand our reach and establish a strong 
presence worldwide. 

• SEZ Project:
Our SEZ project has reported total turnover of Rs. 1,118.70 lacs compared to total turnover of Rs. 
1,163.51 lacs in the last year, i.e., decrease of 3.85%. 

► Exports:
ln order to boost our exports further, your Directors have been exploring possibilities of setting up 
subsidiaries/branches abroad. New territories like USA, Europe, Australia GIS Countries and South 
America are being explored. 

During the year 2023-24, we achieved an export turnover of Rs. 1,112.03 lacs (F.O.B.) as compared 
to Rs. 1,090.77 lacs of the previous year. With the measures outlined above, we expect to further 
improve our exports in the coming years. 

► Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies:
We have two subsidiary companies i.e., RTUL Ultrasonic (Thailand) Co., Ltd. in Thailand and RTUL 
Ultrasonic SDN. BHD. in Malaysia. 

ln pursuance to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rule, 2014, the report on the performance and financial position of the Subsidiary 
Companies in Form AOC-1 is attached and forms a part of Financial Statements. 

Pursuant to Accounting Standard AS-21 issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia, 
Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial information of 
these two subsidiary companies. The An nuai accounts of the subsidiary companies are available for 
inspection by any member at the registered office during business hours. The company will send 
copies thereof to the shareholders who may, if required, write to the company. 

Further, the Company does not have any Joint Venture Company or an Associate Company. During 
the year under review, or at any time after the closure of the year and till the date of the Report, no 
subsidiary, associate or joint venture of the company has ceased to be a subsidiary, associate or joint 
venture. 

► Conservation of Energy. Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo::

During the year we have earned foreign exchange to the tune of Rs. 1, 112.03 lacs and spent a sum of 
Rs. 767.37 lacs in foreign currency mainly to import raw materials. The details of energy 
conservation, R&D activities and foreign exchange earnings & outgo are given in 'Annexure 1 '.

► Human Resource Management:
Hu man resources form an integral part of your company's strategy for growth. The company believes 
that competence and commitment of its people are the key drivers for growth of any organization. 
There have been excellent relations between the employees al various levels 

I
e managemen
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We have created a favorable work environment that encourages innovation and meritocracy. We 
believe in investing in people competencies for the business requirements of tomorrow. 

► Board Of Directors:

Du ring the year under review, Dr. Anant Trivedi's term as Managing Director is completed on 31 
st 

July, 
2023, The Board of Directors proposed his re-appointment as Managing Director of the Company for 
the period of 5 years in the Annual General Meeting (adjourned) ('AGM') held on 30

th 

September, 
2023 in view of he being the most competent and key persan in the Company. As Dr. Anant Trivedi has 
attained the age of 71, as per the applicable provisions of Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
his re-appointment was proposed under Special Resolution. Though the resolution was passed as an 
ordinary resolution, the re-appointment could not be made as requisite special resolution was not 
passed by the Members of the Company in the said AGM. 

Mr. Kodur Rajagopalan Puthanvitil (OIN: 00592972) retires by rotation and being eligible, has offered 
himself for reappointment. The Board consists of 5 Directors which are as follows: 

Sr No Name of the Director Designation Date of Appoint ment 

Chairman & Managing 

1 Dr. A.S. Trivedi 
Director-upto 31 

st 
July, 2023

29-03-1982Chairman & Director w.e.f. 1 st 

August, 2023 

2 Mrs. Rupa. A. Trivedi Whole Time Director 01-08-2011 

3 Mr. Natwarlal Vallabhdas Trivedi Non-Executive Director 02-12-2022

4 Mrs. Karishma Vioul Tanna Non-Executive Director 02-12-2022

5 Mr. K.P. Rajaqopalan Director 09-10-2006

► NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The 7 (Seven) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held du ring the year of the Board Report and 
the Directors attendance in the Meetings are as under. The intervening gap between any two 
meetings was within the period prescribed by the CompaniesAct, 2013. 

Directors' attendance 

Sr. No. 
Date of Board 

Dr. Anant Mrs. Rupa Mr. Kodur 
Mr. 

Mrs. 
Meeting Natwarlal 

Suryakant Anant rajagopalan Karishma 
Vallabhdas 

Trivedi Trivedi puthanvitil 
Trivedi 

Vipul Tanna 

1 07-04-2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

2 07-07-2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

3 05-09-2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

4 05-10-2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

5 13-12-2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

6 15-12-2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

7 07-03-2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

------�--
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► Details of Policy developed and implemented by the Company on its Corporate Social
Responsibility Initiatives:

As per Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 (lnserted by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 
2020. Notification dated 28th September, 2020, amendment Effective from 22nd January 2021 ), the 
Company is not mandatorily required to form CSR committee du ring the year 2023-2024, as the total 
CSR obligation of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024 was Rs. 12.46 Lakhs (Rupees 
Twelve lakhs forty six thousands only) which is less than Rs. 50 lakhs. Hence, the CSR Committee 
was dissolved du ring the year and now, the Board is discharging the function of CSR committee. 
The brief outline on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the initiatives 
taken by the Company during the year are set out in prescribed format under the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 annexed as 'Annexure 2' forming the part of this 
Board's Report. (ln accordance with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Amendment Rules, 2022 notified Vide Notification No. G.S.R.715 (E) Dated 20th September, 2022.) 
This Policy is available on the Company's website on www.rtulgroup.com 

The profits of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are Rs. 931.58 Lakhs (PBT), which is 
more than 5 crore and hence the Company is under the CSR obligation for the year 2024-2025 under 
Section 135 of the CompaniesAct, 2013. 

► VIGIL MECHANISM:

The disclosure on establishment of Vigil mechanism as per the provisions of Section 177 (9) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and Powers) are not 
applicable to the Company du ring the year under review. 

► StatutoryAuditors:
The Company's Statutory Auditors M/s. Parikh & Parikh (FRN: 107526W, Chartered Accountants,
term of appointment is completing in the forthcoming AGM. ln accordance with the provisions of
Section 139 of the Act, the Board propose to re-appoint M/s. M/s. Parikh & Parikh, Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 107526W, a firm of Chartered Accountants), as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of this An nuai
General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the sixth An nuai General Meeting (4 7th) of the Company
to be held in the year 2029, from this An nuai General Meeting, at such remuneration plus applicable
taxes, out-of-pocket expenses etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the
Company and theAuditors.

M/s. Parikh & Parikh have consented to and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be 
within the limits specified under Section 141 (3)(g) of the Act. They have also confirmed that they are 
not disqualified to be appointed asAuditors in terms of the provisions of the proviso to Section 139(1 ), 
Section 141(2) and Section 141(3) of the Act and the provisions of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

► SECRETARIALAUDIT:

The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of Section 204 and the relevant Rules 
made thereunder for Secretarial Audit for the period ended 31 st March, 2024. 
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► DISCLOSURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED BY THE CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT UND ER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company is required the maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government 
underSub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the CompaniesAct, 2013: 

► Details of fraud reported by auditors under sub section (12) of section 143 other than
which are reportable to the central government:
There was no fraud reported by Auditors under Sub Section ( 12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013.

► The explanations or comments by the board on every qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer made by the auditor in bis report shall be given:

The observations and comments given in the Auditor's Report read together with the notes to the

account are self-explanatory and hence do not call for any further information and explanation.

► Directors Responsibility Statement:
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained
by them, your Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies
Act, 2013:

(a) that in the preparation of the an nuai accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

(b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note 1 to the an nuai accounts have been selected
and applied consistently and judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent made so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year
ended on March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the company for that year;

(c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the
assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities;

(d) that the Annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

(e) that proper internai financial contrais were in place and that the financial contrais were adequate
and were operating effectively. 

(f) that system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were
adequate and were operating effectively.

► Related Party Transactions:
Ali related party transactions that were entered into du ring the financial year were on an arm's length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related party
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transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other 
designated persans which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 
Since all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of 
business and were on an arm's length basis and the same is as per the Notes to theAudited Financial 
Statements which are in self-explanatory in nature. The disclosures of related party transaction in 
Form AOC-2 which is enclosed as "Annexure - 3" of this Report. 

► lnsurance:
The Properties andAssets of the Company are adequately insured.

► Credit Rating:
There were no changes in the Credit Rating of the Company as on March 31, 2024.

► Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts:
As the members are aware at present the Company is having the litigations with its foreign
shareholders group - Telsonic. The members are requested to refer the "Annexure 4" for the details
of the litigations and the progress du ring the year under review.

► Consolidated Financial Statements:
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with relevant
Accounting Standards (AS) viz. AS 21, AS 23 and AS 27 issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia form part of thisAnnual Report.

► Secretarial standards:

The Company has complied with ail applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the lnstitute of 
Company Secretaries of lndia. 

► Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
company which have occurred between 31

st 

March, 2024 (the end of financial year of the
company to which the financial statements related) and 15

th 

November, 2024 (date of the
report):

There was no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between 31

st 

March, 2024 (the end of financial year of the company to 
which the financial statements related) and 15

th 

November, 2024 (date of the report). 

► Change ln the Nature of Business, If Any:

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

► Details in respect of adeguacy of internai financial contrais with reference to the financial
statements:

The Company has sound systems of internai contrais and checks which are supplemented by audit at 
regular intervals, commensurate with the size of the business and nature of its operation. 
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The directors have laid down Internai Financial Controls and procedures for efficient conduct of its 
business including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information and to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

► Disclosure Under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal)Act, 2013:
ln line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressai) Act, 2013, the Company has set up 'POSH Committee' (Prevention of
Sexual Harassment Committee) at its workplaces. No complaints have been received du ring the year
2023-24.

► Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or lnvestments by the Company:
Details of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, wherever applicable, are given in the notes to financial statements.

► Annual Return:

ln accordance with Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, the An nuai 
Return as on 31st March, 2024 is available on the Company's website www.rtulgroup.com The 
complete return shall be available on the website on filing with the Registrar of Companies, Ministry of 
Corporate (MCA). 

► Risks Management and Concerns:
The Company has a risk management policy, which from time to time, is reviewed by the Board of
Directors. The Policy is reviewed by assessing the threats and opportunities that will impact the
objectives set for the Company as a whole. The Policy is designed to provide the categorization of risk
into threat and its cause, impact, treatment and control measures. As part of the Risk Management
Policy, the relevant parameters for all manufacturing sites are analyzed to minimize risk associated
with protection of environment, safest of operations and health of people at work and monitored
regularly with reference to statutory regulations and guidelines defined by the Company. The
Company fulfills its legal requirements concerning emission, waste water and waste disposai.
lmproving work place safety continued to be top priority at all manufacturing sites.

► The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the insolvency and
bankruptcy code, 2016 (31 of 2016) du ring the year along with their status as at the end of the
financial year.:

Not Applicable. 

► The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions
along with the reasons thereof.:

Not Applicable. 
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► Deposits:

The Company do not have and have not raised any deposit falling under the purview of Section 73 of 
the CompaniesAct, 2013 and the ru les made there under. 

► Transfer of amounts to investor education and protection fund:

The Company has no unpaid or unclaimed dividends for the previous years. Therefore, there were no 
funds required to be transferred to lnvestors Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

► MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:
(A) There are no employees whose salary exceeded Rs. 8,50,000/- month or
Rs.10,200,000/- per year as required pursuant to 5 (2) of the companies (Appointment and
remuneration of managerial personnel) Ru les, 2014.

(B) The information of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn is available for
inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company du ring business hours on
working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any
Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company in
this regards.

► Acknowledgements:

We thank our distributors, clients, vendors, investors and bankers for their continued support du ring 
the year. We place on record our appreciation of the contribution made by employees at all levels. Our 
consistent growth was made by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support. We thank the 
Government of lndia particularly the Customs & GST Departments, the lncome Tax Departments, the 
Ministry of Finance, the Reserve Bank of lndia, the State Governments and other government 
agencies for their support and look forward to their continued support in the future. 

► Cautionary Statement:
Statements in the Board's Report describing the Company's objectives, expectations or forecasts
may be moderate-looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual
results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that could
influence the Company's operations include global and domestic demand and supply conditions
affecting selling prices of finished goods, input availability and prices, changes in government
regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country and other factors such as litigation
and industrial relations.

Place : Mumbai 
Date 15

th 

October, 2024 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
Chairman & Director 
OIN: 00575030 

Rupa A. Trivedi 
Whole-time Director 
OIN: 00370081 
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ANNEXURE 1 
INFORMATION RELATING TO ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 
AND FOREIGN EXCH ANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS' 

REPORT IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3) (m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 
RULE8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

(A) Energy Conservation:
Energy conservation continues to be an active focus area for your Company since it is not only a
major cost in the manufacturing process but, more importantly, a significant part of your Company's
corporate social responsibilities. Your Company has taken several initiatives at each location in order
to conserve energy which is in line with our policy of conservation of natural resources.

(B) Technology Absorption:
Research & Development (R&D):
R & D of new services, designs, processes and methodologies continue to be of importance to us.
This allows us to enhance quality, productivity and customer satisfaction through continuous
innovation.

a) Specific areas in which R & D is carried out by the company:
Multi frequency cleaning, Ultrasonic Sonochemical Processors, Digital Equipment's, New Digital
Welding and Cleaning Generators, etc.
b) Benefits derived as a result of R & D activity:
Our performance has increased and we are achieving expertise in our equipments. Our Company is
supporting innovations as per new Government's Policies to make lndia Self Reliant.
c) Future Plan of actions:
There will be continuous focus on and increased investment in the above R & D activities.
d) Expenditure on R &  D for the year ended March 31, 2024:

Revenue expenditure for 2023-24 Rs. 94.81 lacs.
Total R & D expenditure as a% of total turnover: 1.41 %

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: 
1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation - Training
sessions being conducted.
2) Benefits derived as a result of the efforts of product development- We have improved quality of our
products.

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange earned 
Foreign Exchange used 

Place : Mumbai 
Date 15

th 

October, 2024 

2023-24 
1112.03 lacs 
767.37 lacs 

2022-23 
1090.?? lacs 
552.52Iacs 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
Chairman & Director 
DIN: 00575030 

Rupa A. Trivedi 
Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00370081 
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ANNEXURE-2 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES) ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024 

1 Brief outline on CSR Policv of the Comoanv.: 

The CSR policy of the Company lays down the guidelines to make CSR a key business process for sustainable development of the society. The CSR pc licy 
aise encompasses the scope of CSR activities of the Company. 

2 Composition of CSR Committee. 

As per Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 (lnserted by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020. Notification dated 28th September, 2020., 
amendment Effective from 22nd January 2021 ), the Company was not required to form CSR committee during the year 2023-2024, as the total CSR 
obligation of the Company for the year end 3'i March, 2024 was Rs. 12.46 Lakh which is less !han Rs. 50 lakh. the CSR Committee was dissolved. Heni� 
the Board of Directors are discharging the function of CSR committee. 

Number of Number of 

SL. 
Name of the Director Designation/Nature of Directorship 

meetings of meetings of 

No CSR Committee CSR committee 

held during the attend during 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

3 
Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website 

of the Company.: 

Details of , CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the board are disclosed owww.rtulgroup.com 

4 
Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assesment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of thE 

Companies (Corporate Social Resposibility Policy)Rules,2014, ifapplicable (attach the report). 
Not Applicable for the financial year under review.(The Company will carry out impact assessment of projects undertaken after January 22, 2021, if 
applicable, and will provide delails of the same as part of ils future reports as required pursuant to rule 8(3) of the Companies (Corporate Social 

5 (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. 

Rs. 622.77 Lakhs. 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.

Rs. 12.46 Lakhs.

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Project or programmes or activities of the previous Financial year.

Rs. NIL.

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the Financial year, if any.

Rs. NIL.

(e) Total CSR obligation for the Financial year (2023-2024 )[ (b)+(c )-(d) ] 

Rs. 12.46 Lakhs.

6 (a) Amou nt spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project). 

Rs. 13.39 Lakhs. 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads.

NIL

(c) Amou nt spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

NIL

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial year [ (a)+(b)+(c ) ]. 

Rs. 13.39 Lakhs.
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Sl. 

No.

(1)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

7

1

Sl. 

No.

1

2

3

8

Sl. 

No.

Pincod

e of the 
propert

y or 

asset(s

1 3

9

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office / Municipal Corporation / Gram 

Panchayat                            are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

Specify  the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per sub-section(5) of section 135.:             Not Appolicable

₹ 0.00

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility

amount spent in the Financial Year:

------ Yes No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired :    N.A.

CSR 

Registration 

Number, if 

applicable

Name Registered Address

NIL

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

N.A. N.A. N.A.

FY-3(2022-2023) N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

FY-3(2021-2022) N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Deficiency,

if any

FY-2 (2020-

2021)
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Amount (in Rs.)Date of Transfer.

N.A. N.A.

Preceding 

Financial 

Year(s)

Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 

Account under 

sub-section (6) 

of section 135.                    

(in Rs.)

Balance 

Amount in 

Unspent CSR 

Account under 

sub-section (6) 

of section 135.

(in Rs.)

Amount spent                          

in the            

Financial Year                   

(in Rs.)

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Amount (in ₹) in 

lakhs
Particular

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial year.

Name of fundDate of Transfer.Amount (in Rs.) 

lakhs

Amount (in 

Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) lakhs

₹ 13.39 ₹ 0.00 NA ₹ 0.00 NANA

Date of Transfer.

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

sub-section (6) of section 135.

Amount transferred to any fund specified under

Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5)

of section 135.

Total Amount                           

Spent for the                                                                 

Financial Year.                                                                

(in Rs.) lakhs

(2) (3)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. ₹ 12.46

Total amount spent for the Financial Year ₹ 13.39

Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [ (ii)-(i) ] ₹ 0.94

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any, ₹ 0

Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [ (iii)- (iv) ] ₹ 0.94

Short particulars of the 

property or asset(s)     

[including complete 

address and location of 

the property]

Date of            

creation

Amount of       

CSR amount 

spent Rs. in 

Lakhs)

Details of entity / Authority /

beneficiary under whose name  such capital asset is registered

2 4 5 6

Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Amount transferred to a                    

Fund as specified under                                    

Schedule VII as per                               

second proviso to    

sub-section (5)                 

of section 135.                          

if any

Amount     

remaining to 

be           spent 

in

succeeding

Financial 

Years

(in Rs.)
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ANNEXURE 3 

FORMAOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Ru/es, 2014) 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto 

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: There are no 
contracts or arrangements or transactions which are notArm's length basis. - Not Applicable 

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

Name of Related 
Sr. No. Party and nature of 

transactions 

RTUL Ultrasoni>c 
1 

(Thailand) Co. Ltd. 

RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. 
2 

BHD. 

3 Kay lmpex Pvt Ltd 

4 Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi 

5 Mr. Aditya A. Trivedi 

Place : Mumbai 
Date 15

th 

October, 2024 

Salient terms of 

Nature of contract 
Duration of the contract 

/arrangement 
contract/ /arrangement 

Advances, if any 
/transactions 

arrangement/trans /transactions, 
actions including value, if 

anv 
Price determined 

based on 

Sale of goods & AMC of 
negotiation from 

During 2023-24 time to time. Nil 
Rs. 64.61 lacs 

Date of Approval 

07-04-2023 

Price determined 
based on 

Sale of goods & AMC of 
negotiation from 

During 2023-24 time to time. Nil 
Rs. 50.51 lacs 

Date of Approval 

07-04-2023 

Price determined 
based on 

Purchase of Goods and 
negotiation from 

Services of Rs. 5. 1 0 lacs 
During 2023-24 time to time. Nil 

Date of Approval 

07-04-2023 

Term as per lease 
rent agreement 

dated 01st 

September, 2021 
for period of 36 

Rent paid of Rs. 6.14 
During 2023-24 

English calendar 
Nil 

lacs month from o-f' 
Sept, 2021 to 315' 

August, 2024 

Date of Approval 

21/08/2021 

As terms and 
conditions as may 

Appointment of Relative be mutually agreed 
to office or place of profit by Mr. Aditya 
as Vice president During 2023-24 Trivedi and Board Nil 
Remunerationpaid of Rs. of Directors 
53.22 lacs Date of Approval 

07-04-2023 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
Chairman & Director 
DIN: 00575030 

Rupa A. Trivedi 
Whole-time Director 
DIN:0037I-----•
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Annexure 4 
_Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts 

1. The Company petition (no. 57 of 2023) has been filed a long with a Company Application u/s241

and 242 of The Companies Act, 2013 before the Honorable National Company Law Tribunal,

(NCLT) Mumbai against the Company & it's promoter group byTelsonic Holding AG.

Thereafter, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ('NCLT') passed an order 
dated 28th July, 2023 in respect of the rights issue which was completed by the Company in 
financial year ('FY') 22-23. The Company has filed an appeal against the same with the Hon'ble 
National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi Bench ('NCLAT'). So, till the pendency of the 
appeal, legal opinion was sought by the Company while preparing the financial statements for FY 
23-24 with respect to the impact of the aforesaid order dated 28th July,2023. Ta king the said legal
opinion into consideration, the Company retained the a mou nt received under the rights issue as
the same had already been deployed prier to the order of the NCLT dated 28th July,2023 and
there was no stay by the regulatory authorities till that date. However, basis the above, the
amount of rights issue was not returned and voting is being conducted considering pre-rights
issue voting rights.

2. During the litigation, it came to the observation of the Company that the complete
shareholding of about 38.45% is not solely in the name ofTelsonic Holding AG.

3. Now, the Company is taking all necessary steps, and has filed a Company Petition No. 97 of

2024 before the Hon'ble NCLT with respect to the rectification of Register of Members. Pending

Order impacts of same on financial position cannot be quantified. However, for all the purposes

the Company has considered shareholding prior to rights issue only.

4. Further information regarding the above events has been disclosed in the financial statements

of the Company as on 31
st 

March, 2024.

Place : Mumbai 
Date 15

th 

October, 2024 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
Chairman & Director 
DIN: 00575030 

Rupa A. Trivedi 
Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00370081 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

PARIKH & PARIKH 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTS 

42, Dahanukar Building,2nd Floor, 

480, Kalbadevi Road, 

Opp. Round Building,Mumbai-400 002. 

TO THE MEMBERS OF ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED (Formerly Known as ROOP TELSONIC 
ULTRASONIX LIMITED.} 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LIMITED} ("the Company"}, which comprise the 

Balance Sheet as at 31 st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Lass, the Cash Flow Statement for the 

year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

(hereinafter referred ta as "Standalone Financial Statements"). 

ln our opinion and ta the best of our information and according ta the explanations given ta us, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act) in the 

manner sa required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting Standards prescribed 

under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ru les, 2014, and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in lndia: 

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Lass, of the profit for the year ended on that date;
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Instituts of Chartered 
Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant ta our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Ru les thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate ta provide a basis for our opinion on the financial 
statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed, in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters ecept as under The Comany petition (no. 57 of 2023) has been filed along with a Company 
Applicaion u/s241 and 242 of The Companies Act, 2013 before the Honorable National Company Law 
Tribunal, (NCLT) Mumbai against the Company & it's promoter group byîelsonic Holding AG. 
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Thereafter, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ( 'NCL T') passed as order dated 28th 
July, 2023 in respect of the rights issue which was completed by the Company in the financial year ('FY') 22-23. 
The Company has filed an appeal against the same with the Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate, Delhi 
Ben ch ('NCLAT'). So, till the pendency of the appeal, legal opinion was sought by the Company while preparing 
the financial statements for FY 23-24 with respect to the impact of the aforesaid order dated 28th July, 2023. 
Taking the said legal opinion into consideration, the Company retained the amount received under the rights 
issue as the same had already been deployed prior to the order of the NCLT dated 28th July, 2023 and there 
was no stay by the regulatory authorities till that date. However, basis the above, the a mou nt of rights issue was 
not returned and voting is being conducted considering pre-rights issue voting rights. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at 
the date of this auditor's report is other information included in Board of Directors Annual Report including 
Annexures to such report but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditor's Report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not caver the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance thereon. 

ln connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's 
report, we conclu de that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position and financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accord an ce 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the Accounting Standards specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Ru les, 2014. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internai 

financial contrais, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

ln preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone 

Financial Statements. 

As part of and audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

·• ldentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internai contrai; 

·• Obtain an understanding of internai financial contrai relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internai financial 
contrais system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrais. 

·• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

·• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

·• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is a magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statement that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonable knowledgeable use of the 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and quantitative 
factors in (1) planning the scope of our audit work in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internai contrai 
that we identify du ring our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would resonably 
be expected to outweight the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ru les, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 st March, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 st March, 2024 from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internai financial contrais over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such contrais with respect to Financial Statements, refer to our
separate Report in 'Annexure A'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company's internai financial contrais over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors du ring the year is in accordance with the provisions

of Section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in theAuditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company petition (no. 57 of 2023) has been filed along with a Company Application u/s241
and 242 of The Companies Act, 2013 before the Honorable National Company Law
Tribunal,(NCL T) Mumbai against the Company & it's promoter group by Telsonic Holding AG.
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Thereafter, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ('NCL T') passed an 
order dated 28th July, 2023 in respect of the rights issue which was completed by the Company in 
financial year ('FY') 22-23. The Company has filed an appeal against the same with the Hon'ble 
National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi Bench ('NCLAT'). So, till the pendency of the 
appeal, legal opinion was sought by the Company while preparing the financial statements for FY 
23-24 with respect to the impact of the aforesaid order dated 28th July,2023. Taking the said legal
opinion into consideration, the Company retained the amount received under the rights issue as
the same had already been deployed prior to the order of the NCL T dated 28th July,2023 and
there was no stay by the regulatory authorities till that date. However, basis the above, the amount
of rights issue was not returned and voting is being conducted considering pre-rights issue votiing
rights.

(ii) The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there are any material foreseeable lasses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("lntermediates"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
Understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has corne to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (1) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under h (iv) (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
applicable fromApril 01, 2023.

Based on our examination the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. 

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable fromApril 1 ,
2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit andAuditors) Ru les, 2014 on the 
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order''), as amended, issued by
the Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure B", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

FOR PARIKH & PARIKH 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 107526W 

(MILAN G. PARIKH) 
PROPRIETOR 
M. NO. 038557

UDIN:24038557BKAIUG9381

PLACE: MUMBAI 

DATE : 15th Oct., 2024 
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ANNEXURE: A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under paragraph "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of the 
1 ndependent Auditors' Report of even date) 

Report on the Internai Financial Controls un der Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act. 

We have audited the internai financial contrais over financial reporting of the ROOP ULTRASON IX LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASON IX LIMITED) ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internai Financial Controls: 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internai financial contrais based 
on the internai contrai over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internai contrai stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internai Financial Contrais Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (ICAI). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internai financial 
contrais that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the CompaniesAct, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility: 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internai financial contrais over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internai 
Financial Contrais Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internai financial contrais. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internai financial contrais over financial reporting were established and maintained and if 
such contrais operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing pracedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internai financial 
contrais system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.Our audit of internai financial 
contrais over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internai financial contrais over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internai contrai based on the assessed risk. The pracedures selected depend on 
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or errar. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apprapriate to pravide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internai financial contrais system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internai Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 

A Company's internai financial contrai over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internai financial contrai 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflected the
transactions and depositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that cou Id have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of Internai Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 

Because of the inherent limitations of internai financial contrais over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of contrais, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internai financial contrais over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internai financial contrai over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion: 

lin our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internai financial contrais system over 
financial reporting and such internai financial contrais over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2024, based on the internai contrai over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internai contrai stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internai 
Financial Contrais Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. 

FOR PARIKH & PARIKH 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 107526W 

{MILAN G. PARIKH) 
PROPRIETOR 
M. NO. 038557

UDIN:2403588BKAIUG9381

PLACE: MUMBAI 
DATE : 15th Oct., 2024 
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"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under paragraph "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of the 
1 ndependent Auditors' Report of even date to the financial statement of the Company for the year ended 31 

st 

March, 2024) 

ln terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state 
that 

(1) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including Quantitative details

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) There is a regular program of physical verification of Property, Plant & Equipment which in our

opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No

material discrepancies have been noticed in respect of the assets physically verified during the year.

(c) Based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to
us, we report that, the title deeds, of all the immovable properties (other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in faveur of the Company)
disclosed in the financial statements included in Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date. ln  respect of immoveable properties where
the Company is the lessee, the lease agreements are duly executed in faveur of the lessee (including
cases where the lease contract is in the process of being renewed).

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the
year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at 31st March, 2024 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in
2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the Management were reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business. No discrepancies of 10%
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crores rupees, in aggregate, from the bank on the basis of security of current
assets. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly
statements filed by the Company with such bank are in agreement with the books of account of the
Company except as follows: .
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Quarter Name of Ban Particulars Amount as per Amount as Amount of Whether 

books of reported in the Difference return/stateme 

account quarterly nt subsequently 

return/statemen rectified 

Central BanK 
Inventories 1,325 t 1,342 (17) 

Q 1 June 2023 (47) No
of lnaia 

Trace Receivables 432 479 

(13) Trace Payables 352 365 

Central BanK 
Inventories 1,468 1,445 23 

Q 2 Septemoer 2023 (24) No
of lnaia 

Trace Receivables 698 722 

(9) Trace Payables 198 207 

Central BanK 
Inventories 1,413 1,446 (33) 

Q 3 Decemoer 2023 (43) No
of lnaia 

Trace Receivables 554 597 

(15)Trace Payables 501 516 

Central BanK 
Inventories 1,565 1,455 110

Q 4 Marcn 2024 Yes
of lnaia 

Trace Receivables 652 638 14 

Trace Payables 612 549 63

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit Procedures conducted
by us, The Company has made investments in subsidiary companies, in respect of which the requisite
information is as below.

(a) The Company has granted loans and/or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to

subsidiary companies du ring the year in respect of which the requisite information is below: The Company

has not provided any loans and/or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to firms, limited

liability partnership or other parties during the year. The Company has not provided any guarantee or

security to any entity.
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(b) In our opinion and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.         

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, in the case of loans and advances in the nature of loan given, in our

Opinion the repayment of principal and payment of interest (where applicable) has not been stipulated.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans

and advances in the nature of loan given since the repayment is not stipulated.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during the year, has been

renewed or extended as per mutual understanding. There is no fresh loans granted to settle the overdues

of existing loans given to same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and security given by the
Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) have
been complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under provisions of Sections 73, 74,

75 and 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent

notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the ru les made

by the Central Government of lndia for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section

148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been

made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to

determine whether they are accu rate or complete.

(vii)(a)According to the information and expia nations given to us and the records of the Company examined by 

us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident 

fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, customs duty, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other 

material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined

by us, there is no, undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insu rance,

income tax, sales tax, customs duty, Goods and service tax, cess, and other material statutory dues, as

applicable were in arrears as at 31st March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding of income tax,

wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty, GST, excise duty and cess on account of any dispute ,

are Nil:

(viii) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to

us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or

disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the lncome TaxAct, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by

us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest

thereon to any lender.

(b )According to the information and expia nations given to us and the records of the Company examined by

us, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government

or government authority.

( c) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, term

loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d)According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance

sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term

purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the

financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not ta ken any funds from any entity

or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as

defined under theAct.
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we

report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) The company has not raised any money by way of an initial public offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments).

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible

debentures du ring the year.

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud on or by the Company

has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) ln absence of any suspected offence involving fraud being committed or having been committed, no

report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the companies Act,2013 has been filed by the auditors in

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the

Central Government.

(c)According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations

given to us, the Company has not received whistle blower complaints during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nid hi Company as defined under section 406(1) of the Act and thus Nidhi Rules

2014 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) The transactions entered by the Company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and

188 of the Act. The details of all such transactions are disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements as

required under Accounting Standard 18, Related Party Disclosures.

(xiv) The company is not required to carry internai audit as the company is not covered under definition of

the private limited company mentioned in Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xv) ln our opinion and according the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persans connected with him.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of lndia

Act, 1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-ban king financial or Housing Finance activities.

(c) The Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

Reserve Bank of lndia.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors du ring the year.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has corne to our attention, which causes us to believe that

any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of

meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet and when they fall due within a period of one year

from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state 

that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee 

nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Company has spent

amount towards CSR expenses during the current year. There is no unspent amount under sub-section

(5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project.

(b) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent

amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project. Accordingly

clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

FOR PARIKH & PARIKH 

CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS 

FRN: 107526W 

{MILAN G. PARIKH) 

PROPRIETOR 

M. NO. 038557

UDIN:24038557BKAIUG9381

PLACE: MUMBAI 
DATE : 15

th

0ct., 2024 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2024 

As At As At 

PARTICULARS Note No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 

1 EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

Share Holders' Funds 

Share Capital 2 696.65 992.74 

Reserves and Surplus 3 4,847.64 4,196.19 

5,544.29 5,188.93 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Long Term Borrowings 4 - 6.43 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 33.43 -

Long Term Provisions 6 154.51 349.33 

187.94 355.76 

Current Liabilities 

Short Term Borrowings 7 690.93 784.71 

Trade Payables 8 611.62 477.27 

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

and small enterprises: and 

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(C) Other Current Liabilities 9 596.32 685.78 

1,898.87 1,947.76 

TOTAL 7,631.10 7,492.46 

Il ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipments: 10 

Tangible Assets 1,361.48 1,267.44 

Intangible Assets - -

Capital work-in progress - -

Intangible Assets under Development - -

1,361.48 1,267.44 

Deferred Tax Assets 5 - 5.08 

Non-Current lnvestments 11 11.59 11.59 

Long Term Loans and Advances 12 322.93 362.39 

334.52 379.06 

Current Assets 

Inventories 13 1,564.59 1,066.65 

Trade Receivables 14 930.88 886.11 

Cash and Cash equivalents 15 3,124.93 3,637.23 

Short Term Loans and Advances 16 299.45 248.80 

Other Current Assets 17 15.25 7.17 

5,935.10 5,845.96 

TOTAL 7,631.10 7,492.46 

Notes (lncluding Significant Accounting Policies) 1 - 43 

Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

As per our Report of even date 

For PARIKH & PARIKH For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED. 

FRN : 107526W ( Formerly known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LIMITED.) 

CIN : U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Milan G. Parikh Dr. Anant S. Trivedi Rupa A. Trivedi 

Proprietor Chairman & Director Whole-time Director 

M.No.:038557 DIN : 00575030 DIN : 00370081 

UDIN : 24038557BKAIUG9381 

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai 

Date : 15th October,2024 Date : 15th October,2024 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 

PARTICULARS 

Revenue from Operations 

Other lncome 

Total Revenue 

Expenses: 

Cast of Materials Consumed 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 

and Work-in-process 

Employee Benefits Expenses 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 

amortization (EBITDA) 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation and amortization Expenses 

Profit before Tax 

Tax Expense: 

Current Tax 

Current Tax adjustment of earlier years 

Deferred Tax 

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year 

Earnings per Equity Share: 

Basic and Diluted 

Notes (lncluding Significant Accounting Policies) 

Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

As per our Report of even date 

For PARIKH & PARIKH 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 107526W 

Milan G. Parikh 

Proprietor 

M.No.: 38557

UDIN : 24038557BKAIUG9381

Place : Mumbai

Date : 15th October,2024 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 

Note No. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

10 

5 

25 

1 - 43 

31.03.2024 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

6,745.61 

113.15 

6,858.76 

3,055.92 

(45.41 

1,280.00 

1,408.98 

5,699.49 

1,159.27 

85.86 

141.83 

931.58 

190.00 

51.62 

38.51 

280.13 

651.45 

9.35 

31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

5,476.99 

220.92 

5,697.90 

2,632.47 

64.98 

1,220.79 

1,013.11 

4,931.35 

766.56 

107.01 

133.98 

525.57 

144.00 

(7.24 

136.76 

388.81 

11.01 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED. 

( Formerly known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LIMITED.) 

CIN : U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 

Chairman & Director 

DIN : 00575030 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 15th October,2024 

Rupa A. Trivedi 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 00370081 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Particulars 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit before taxation 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation on fixed assets 
Finance Cost 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 

Deduct: 
Dividend Received 

lnterest income 

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 

Adjustments for 
{lncrease) / Decrease in inventories 
(lncrease) / Decrease in trade receivables 

(lncrease) / Decrease in loans and advances & other current assets 
lncrease / (Decrease) in trade payables & other current liabilties 
lncrease / (Decrease) in provisions 

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 
lncome tax Paid / Adjustments 

Net Cash inflow from/ {outflow) from Operating activities 

B. Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities

Purchase of fixed assets 
Sale of Fixed Assets 
lnterest received 
Dividend received 
Net Cash inflow from/ {outflow) from lnvesting activities 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of right equity shares 

Paid to / Proceeds from shares application money 
Loan Taken/Repayment of borrowings (Net) 
Finance Cost 
Dividend paid 
Net Cash inflow from/ {outflow) from Financing activities 

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents { A+B+C ) 
Add: Cash and cash equivalents as at 1stApril 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of: 
Cash on hand 

Other Bank Balances 

Current Accounts 

Unpaid Dividend Accounts 

Fixed Deposit Accounts 

Margin on Bank Guarantees 

As per our report of even date 
For PARIKH & PARIKH 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 107526W 

Milan G. Parikh 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 038557 
UDIN : 24038557BKAIUG9381 

Place: Mumbai. 
Date : 1 5th October,2024 

A 

B 

C 

AS AT 

31.03.2024 
{Rs. ln Lacs) 

931.58 

141.83 

85.86 
2.83 

(0.02) 

(56.27) 

1,105.81 

(497.93) 
(44.77) 
(19.28) 
44.89 

(194.83) 
393.89 

(241.62) 

152.26 

(262.24) 

23.53 
56.27 

0.02 
(182.42) 

(296.09) 
(100.21) 

(85.86) 

(186.06) 

(512.31) 
3,637.23 
3,124.93 

6.76 

2,278.14 
23.17 

742.82 
74.04 

3,124.93 

ASAT 
31.03.2023 

{Rs. ln Lacs) 

525.57 

133.98 

107.01 

(0.03) 

(33.04) 

733.49 

153.12 
(81.60) 
(71.96) 

149.87 

36.43 
919.36 

(144.00) 

775.36 

(77.95) 

33.04 
0.03 

(44.88) 

348.33 

296.09 
(281.72) 
(107.01) 

(34.83) 
(423.57) 

951.32 

2,685.91 
3,637.23 

10.21 

2,714.83 
28.07 

807.00 
77.13 

3,637.23 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED. 
( Fonnarly known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LIMITED.) 

CIN : U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
Chairman & Director 
DIN : 00575030 

Place: Mumbai. 
Date : 15th October,2024 

Rupa A. Trivedi 
Whole-time Director 

DIN : 00370081 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Company overview 

Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. (Formerly Known as Roop Telsonic Ultrasonix Ltd,) (the "Company") is a company 
domiciled in lndia and incorporated under the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 1956 (the "Act"). The Company 
is in the business of manufacturing and sale of various ultrasonic equipments and its accessories. The 
Company is aise engaged in providing services of the said equipments. 

1. Significant Accounting Policies:

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statement: 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting 
principles in lndia (lndian GAAP) under the historical cost convention as also on accrual basis. These 
financial statements have been prepared to comply with the accounting standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014('theAccounting Standards') and the relevant provisions of the Act (to the extent notified). 
ln the light of the first proviso to Section 129 (1) of the Act and Schedule Ill to the Act, the items and 
terms contained in these financial statements are in accordance with the Accounting Standards. 

1.2 Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) in lndia requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of 
the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses du ring the year. Examples 
of such estimates includes provisions for doubtful receivables, employee benefits, provision for 
incarne taxes, the useful lives of the depreciable fixed assets and provision for impairment. Future 
results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference between the actual result 
and the estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized. 

1.3 Property, Plant and Equipment's (Tangible/Intangible): 

(a) Land (Leasehold) is valued at cost less amortization.

(b) Other Fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated
depreciation/amortization. The cost of fixed assets includes taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from tax authorities), duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the
acquisition and installation of the respective assets. lnterest on borrowed funds directly attributable to
the qualifying assets up to the period such assets are put to use, is included in the cost.

(c) Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.
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1.4 Depreciation and Amortization: 

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method over the useful
lives and residual values of assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of The Companies Act,
2013.

(b) Leasehold land is being amortized on the straight line method over the period of lease.

(c) Intangible assets viz. Deferred Revenue Expenditure is amortized on the straight line method over
their estimated useful life of 5 years.

1.5 lmpairment: 

At Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment in the carrying amount of the Company's fixed assets. If any such indication exists, the 
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

An assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an 
impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If any such indication exists the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The carrying 
amount of the fixed asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but so that 
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversai of 
impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Lass. 

After recognition of impairment loss or reversai of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation is 
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. 

1.6 Revenue Recognition: 

(a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized only when it can be reliably measured and it is
reasonable to expect ultimate collection. The amount recognized as sale is exclusive of GST and is net
of returns.

(b) Revenue from service is recognized on rendering of services to customers.

© Dividend incarne is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

(d) lnterest incarne is recognized on the time proportion basis.

1.7 Lease accounting: 

Where the company is lessee 

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an 
expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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1.8 Inventories: 

(a) Raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, stores, spares, traded items and
consumables are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The comparison of cost and net
realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged, unserviceable and inert stocks are
suitably depreciated ..

(b) ln determining cost of raw materials, traded items, stores, spares and consumables, weighted
average cost method is used. Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition.

(c) Cost of finished goods and work-in-process includes the cost of raw materials, an appropriate
share of fixed and variable production overheads, GST as applicable and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Fixed production overheads are
allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

1.9 lnvestments: 

Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long term 
investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the management. 
Current investments are carried at cost. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in 
respect of each category of investments. 

Profit and loss on sale of investments is determined on a first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis. 

1.10 Transactions in Foreign Exchange: 

(a) Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognized in the Profit and LossAccount of the year.

(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are outstanding as at
the year end are translated at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are
recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction.

(c) The premium or discount on forward exchange contracts is recognized over the period of the
contracts in the Profit and LossAccount.

1.11 Sundry Debtors: 

Sundry debtors are stated after writing off debts considered as bad. Adequate provision is made for 
debts considered doubtful. 
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1.12 Employee Benefits: 

A. Short Term Employee Benefits

Ali employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the 
related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits 
expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting 
any a mou nt already paid. 

B. Post-Employment Benefits

Company's contribution to Recognized Provident fund is charged to Profit & Lass Ale. 

The Company has taken a policy with LIC for the payment of gratuity. The premium on the policy is 
debited to provision for gratuity account in the year of payment. 

1.13 lncome Tax: 

Tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with 
the Incarne Tax Act, 1961) & deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing 
differences between accounting incarne and taxable incarne for the period). 

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are 
recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet 
date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can 
be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss under 
taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such 
assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realization. 

1.14 Provisions and Contingencies: 

The Company creates a provision when there exists a present obligation as a result of a past event that 
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Adisclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible 
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. 

1.15 Earnings Per Share: 

The Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for 
the year by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding du ring the year. 
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1.16 Borrowing Costs: 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are 
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Ali other borrowing costs are charged to 
Profit and Loss account. 

1.17 Proposed Dividend: 

Dividend recommended by the Board of directors, pending approval at theAnnual General Meeting, if 
any, is reflected in notes and accounted on distribution of Dividend among shareholders. 

1.18 Research & Developments: 

Revenue Expenditure on Research & Development is charged against the profit of the year in which it 
is incurred and capital expenditure is shown as additions to Fixed Assets. 

1.19 Measurement of EBITDA: 

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Act, the Company has elected 
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line 
Item on the face of the statement of the profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis 
of profit from continuing operations. ln its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation 
and amortization expense, finance cost and tax expense. 

1.20 Segment Reporting Policies: 

Segment is identified based on the geographical location of its customers, the different risks and 
returns and the internai business reporting system. 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted 
for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. 

------�--
Powerhouse Of Ultrasonic Technology 53 



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

ASAT ASAT 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

/Rs. ln Lacsl /Rs. ln Lacsl 

2 : SHARE CAPITAL 

a. Details of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital 

Authorised Capital 

97,50,000 (Pr. Year 97,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 975.00 975.00 

975.00 975.00 

b.lssued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 

69,66,524 ( Pr. Year 69,66,524 ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up.* 696.65 696.65 

c.Share Application Money 

Excess Share Application Money Collected, to be Refunded - 296.09 

696.65 992.74 

Note 

Please refer note as annexure 2(A) 

b. Information on shareholders = Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company -After Right Issue. 

Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Relationship No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held 

Dr. Anan! S. Trivedi CMD 22,09,304 31.71 22,09,304 31.71 

A. S. Trivedi /HUFl - 8,97,501 12.88 8,97,501 12.88 

Mrs. Ruoa A. Trivedi Director 8,41,756 12.08 8,41,756 12.08 

Key Managerial 
M r. Ad itva A. T rived i Persan 6,70,712 9.63 6,70,712 9.63 

Body Corporate 
TelsonicAa. Shareholder. 13,14,101 18.86 13,14,101 18.86 

Body Corporate 
Telsonic HoldinQ AQ. Shareholder. 25,300 0.36 25,300 0.36 

c. Reconciliation of number of shares 

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

No. of Shares Rs. No. of Shares Rs. 

Shares outstandina at the beainnina of the vear 69,66,524 696.65 34,83,262 348.33 

Shares issued & subscribe durinQ the vear - - 34,83,262 348.33 

Shares bouoht back durino the vear - - - -

Shares outstanding al the end of the year 69,66,524 696.65 69,66,524 696.65 

d. Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares 

i) The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share. 

ii) The Company declares and pays dividends in lndian Rupees. Payment of dividend is also made in foreign currency to shareholders outside lndia. The dividend 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in the case of lnterim dividend. 

iii) As per the Companies Act, 2013, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts in the event of liquidation of the Company. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Shareholding of Promoters 

As at 31 March 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Name of Shareholder Number of 
% of total shares 

% Change during the Number of % of total 

shares year shares shares 
% Change during the 

year 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 22,09,304 31.71 - 22,09,304 31.71 208.08 

A. S. Trivedi (HUF) 8,97,501 12.88 - 8,97,501 12.88 212.58 

Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi 8,41,756 12.08 - 8,41,756 12.08 4.24 
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ANNEXURE 2(A) OF NOTES FORMING PARTS OF CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31.03.2024. 

1.One of the shareholders i.e, Telsonic Group of Roop Ultrasonix Limited (' Company') named Telsonic Holding AG, terminated the

Shareholder's Agreement ('SHA') with effect from 04'" April, 2022 and its representative director i.e., Mr. Axel Vietze resigned from the board

of the Company with effect from 05'" October, 2022. ln light of above events, they were disclosed as promoter group of the Company merely

on account of SHA being in effect. Further, Telsonic Group ceased to be the promoter group of the Company vide board resolution passed by

the board of directors in the board meeting held on 22"d November, 2022 where Telsonic was reclassified as a public shareholder.

2.Basis an email dated 12'" October, 2005, received from Telsonic, the Company changed its Register of Members ('RoM') to reflect the

shareholder as TelsonicAG in good faith while awaiting necessary governmental documents from Telsonic Group to prove the same. From

then onwards, the An nuai Return and An nuai Reports reflected two different entities of Telsonic Group which was never verified des pite of

the tact that the representative of Telsonic Group being on the board himself. There is no other entity apart from the Telsonic Group that has

been paid dividend.

3.Thereafter, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ('NCL T') passed an orderdated 28'" July, 2023 in respect of the rights

issue which was completed by the Company in financial year ('FY') 22-23. Thereafter, the Company filed an appeal against the same with the

Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi Bench ('NCLAT'). So, till the pendency of the appeal, legal opinion was sought by

the Company while filing the financial statements for FY ended 22-23 with respect to the impact of the aforesaid order dated 28'" July, 2023.

Taking the said legal opinion into consideration, the Company retained the a mou nt received under the rights issue as the same had already

been deployed prior to the order of the NCLT dated 28'" July, 2023 and there was no stay by the regulatory authorities till that date. However, 

basis the above NCLT order, voting is being conducted considering pre-rights issue shareholding.

4. Further, during the pendency of the Hon'ble NCLAT appeal and basis the records maintained by the Company, it came to light that Telsonic

AG is the only Company who has been allotted equity shares and is the sole recipient of dividend and royalty from the Company.

5.Due to afflux of time, the Company had forgotten that two different disclosures were being given i.e., one in the an nuai reports of the Company

(where TelsonicAG was shown as the shareholder) and one in the list of shareholders attached to the e-form MGT-7 (where Telsonic Holding

AG was shown as the shareholder).

6. Later on, Telsonic Group requested the RTA for dematerialization of its equity shares and vide its various emails and letters sought

confirmation from the Company that 13, 14,101 equity shares stood in the name of Telsonic Holding AG. Further, the Company responded to

the said emails to seek governmental records for the same. Meanwhile, the Company went into whatever historical records that could be

made available after facing hardships and difficulties and came across the tact that certain categoric representations made by the Telsonic

Group is taise and incorrect and the shareholding ofTelsonic Group is also erroneous and the Telsonic Group filing the application, in NCLT,

did not have requisite stake in the Company to file the Company Petition stating the tacts with respect to its shareholding in the Company.

7. Considering the above tacts, the Company is now of the opinion that the complete shareholding of about 38.45% is not solely in the name of

Telsonic Holding AG. Further, the Company is also confused with the shareholding of the two Telsonic Group Companies. ln light of above,

the Company's shareholding is as follows:

a. TelsonicAG: 13,14,101

b. Telsonic Holding AG: 25,300

8.The Company is taking all necessary steps, and has filed a Company Petition No. 97 of 2024 before the Hon'ble NCLT with respect to the

rectification of register of members in this regard through its legal counsels. Order for the same is pending; hence impacts of same on 

financial position cannot be quantified. However, for all the purposes Company has considered shareholding prior to rights issue only. 
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

As At As At 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

{Rs. ln Lacs) {Rs. ln Lacs) 

8 : TRADE PAYABLES 

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 42.58 -

Others than Micro and Small Enterprise 569.04 477.27 

611.62 477.27 

Disclosure in accordance with Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006: 

* The Company has initiated the process of obtaining confirmation from suppliers relating the registration under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The suppliers are not registered wherever confirmations are received and in other cases, The Company is 

not aware of their registration status and information as required by Schedule VI to the Act is not disclosed as it is not determinable. No 

interest on delayed payments to MSME, if any is provided and/or demanded. 

Principal amont remaininq unpaid and interest due thereon 

- Principal Amount 42.58 -

- lnterest - -

lnterest paid in terms of Section 16 - -

lnterest due and payable for the period of delay in payment - -

lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

lnterest due and payable even in succeedinq years - -

Trade payables ageing schedule 

As at 31 March 2024 (Rs. ln Lacs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

(i) MSME 42.cB - - - 42.5 

(ii) Others 265.3 32.68 29.0l 241.9 7 569.0 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - -

As at 31 March 2023 (Rs. Ill Lacs} 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

(i) MSME - - - -

(ii) Others 459.9, 7.0tl 2.E9 7.61 477.2' 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - -

As At As At 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacsl (Rs. ln Lacsl 

9 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Current maturities of long-term debts: 

Term Loan 

Secured 

From Banks - 38.64 
Statutory dues 85.14 55.13 
Unpaid Dividends 23.17 28.07 
Advance from Customers (Unearned Revenue) 373.40 454.53 
Unpaid Expenses 32.56 33.47 
Payable for employee benefits 82.05 75.94 

596.32 685.78 

------�--
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1 O. Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2022 

Additions 

Disposais 

Gross carrvin!I amount as at 31 March 2023 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2022 

Decreciation for the vear 

Disposais 

Assets classified as held for sale 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 

Net carrying amount as al 31 March 2023 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2023 

Additions 

Disposais 

Gross carrvin!I amount as at 31 March 2024 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2023 

Decreciation for the vear 

Disposais 

Accumulated depreciation as al 31 March 2024 

Net carrvin!I amount as al 31 March 2024 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Particulars 

Gross carrvina amount as at 1 Acril 2022 

Additions 

Discosals 

Gross carrving amount as al 31 March 2023 

Accumulated depreciation as al 1 April 2022 

Decreciation for the vear 

Disposais 

Assets classified as held for sale 

Accumulated depreciation as al 31 March 2023 

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 

Gross carrvina amount as at 1 Acril 2023 

Additions 

Discosals 

Gross carrving amount as al 31 March 2024 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2023 

Depreciation for the vear 

Disposais 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 

Net carrvin!I amount as at 31 March 2024 

Land 

(Leasehold) 

221.68 

221.68 

84.56 

5.87 

90.43 

131.25 

221.68 

221.68 

90.43 

5.87 

96.30 

125.38 

Technical 

Know-How 

69.38 

69.38 

69.375 

69.38 

69.38 

69.38 

69.38 

69.38 

Plant & Fumiture & 
Building 

Machinery Fixtures 

1,028.29 841.62 77.18 

31.76 0.88 
-

1,028.29 873.38 78.06 

380.68 618.88 66.21 

31.51 23.41 2.93 

412.20 642.29 69.14 

616.09 231.09 8.92 

1,028.29 873.38 78.06 

40.95 4.31 

1,028.29 914.33 82.36 

412.20 642.29 69.14 

31.51 22.99 1.43 
-

443.71 665.28 70.57 

584.58 249.05 11.79 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

Deferred Total 

Revenue intangible 

Expenditure assets 

107.55 176.93 

107.55 176.93 

107.55 176.93 

107.55 176.93 

107.55 176.93 

107.55 176.93 

107.55 176.93 
-
-

107.55 176.93 

Electrical Air Tools, Jigs 
Vehicals 

Installations Conditions &Fix 

275.13 122.61 132.21 31.39 

6.88 0.23 

275.13 122.61 139.09 31.63 

89.86 110.06 103.34 22.72 

31.37 4.41 7.23 1.39 

121.23 114.46 110.57 24.11 

153.90 8.15 28.52 7.52 

275.13 122.61 139.09 31.63 

197.77 6.06 0.24 

88.20 -
384.71 122.61 145.16 31.86 

121.23 114.46 110.57 24.11 

34.08 1.93 8.55 1.39 

61.84 

93.48 116.39 119.13 25.49 

291.23 6.22 26.03 6.37 

Office 
Computers 

Equipment 

93.76 170.17 

8.25 29.95 

102.01 200.12 

82.48 111.80 

3.53 22.33 
-
-

86.00 134.13 

16.01 65.99 

102.01 200.12 

2.52 10.39 

104.53 210.51 

86.00 134.13 

3.64 30.44 

89.64 164.57 

14.89 45.94 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

Total 

tangible 

assets 

2,994.05 

77.95 

3,072.00 

1,670.58 

133.98 

1,804.56 

1,267.44 

3,072.00 

262.24 

88.20 

3,246.03 

1,804.56 

141.83 

61.84 

1,884.55 

1,361.48 

� 
:z 
:z 

:=arn-a
0 
:=a 
....

� 
0�
w 
� 
0�
.ri.. 

i® 



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

As At As At 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

{Rs. ln Lacs) {Rs. ln Lacs) 

11 : NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

Trade / Other lnvestments 

lnvestment in Equity Instruments 

(i) Unquoted

ln equity instruments of Subsidiaries 

a) RTUL Ultrasonic SDN. BHD. 

1,00,000 (1,00,000) Equity Shares of RM. 10 each 8.30 8.30 

b) RTUL Ultrasonic (Thailand) Co. Ltd. 

10,000 (10,000) Equity Shares of THB. 10 each 0.06 0.06 

c) 1,766 (1,766) Equity Shares of Usher Agro Ltd. 1.09 9.45 1.09 9.45 

(ii) Quoted 

26 (26) Equity Shares of TCS Ltd. 0.06 0.06 

(iii) Mutual Funds 

9500 (9500) DSP Merill Lynch Micro Cap Fund 0.95 0.95 

800 (8) HDFC Gold Exchange Bonds 0.24 0.24 

3000 (300) KOTAK Gold Exchange Bonds 0.88 2.14 0.88 2.14 

11.59 11.59 

Market Value of Quoted lnvestments / Mutual Funds 16.08 11.22 

12 : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

a} Other loans and advances * 

Unsecured Considered Good ( Deposits ) 16.98 17.08 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be recd. 

To Related Parties - Subsidiaries 305.62 301.30 

Advance lncome Tax Paid 190.33 749.01 

Less : Provision for lncome Taxes 190.00 0.33 705.00 44.01 

322.93 362.39 

* lncludes from 

As At As At 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

{Rs. ln Lacs) {Rs. ln Lacs) 

Directors - -

Other officers of the Company . . 

Firm in which director is a partner . . 

Private Company in which director is a member . . 

Subsidiary Companies 305.62 301.30 

13 : INVENTORIES 

Raw Materials & Components 1,414.27 961.75 

Finished and Semi-finished Goods 150.31 104.90 

1,564.59 1,066.65 

------�--
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

As At As At 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 

14 : TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Unsecured Considered Good 930.88 886.11 

930.88 886.11 

Trade Receivable stated above include debts due by:: 

Directors - -

Other officers of the Company - -

Firm in which director is a partner - -

Company in which director is a member - -

From Subsidiaries 140.89 139.84 

As at 31 March 2024 (Rs. in Lacs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 6 6 months to Total 

months 
1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

1 year 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
703.2 95_:,3 66.3 7.3:3 58.6 930.8 � 

considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

which have significant increase in - - - - -

credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
- - - - -

credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
- - - - -

Receivables-considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which 
- - - - -

have significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
- - - - -

credit impaired 

As at 31 March 2023 (Rs. in Lacs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 6 6 months to Total 

months 
1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

1 year 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
730.1 70.(8 34.4 34.0$ 17.3 l 886.1 

considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -

which have significant increase in - - -

credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
- - -

credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
- - -

Receivables-considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which 
- - -

have significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
- - -

credit impaired 

ASAT ASAT 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

/Rs. ln Lacs\ /Rs. ln Lacs\ 

15: CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 6.76 10.21 
Cheques, Drafts on hand - -

Other Bank Balances 

Current Accounts 2,278.14 2,714.83 
Unpaid Dividend Accounts 23.17 28.07 
Fixed Deposit Accounts 742.82 807.00 
Fixed Deposit Accounts (On Margin on Bank Guarantees) 74.04 77.13 

3,118.17 3,627.02 

3,124.93 3,637.23 

------�--
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

AS AT AS AT 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs} (Rs. ln Lacs} 

16 - SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Loans and advances to Others - -

Unsecured, considered good 

Input Tax Credit -GST 116.98 93.74 

Loans & Advances To Employees & Others 14.56 7.27 

Advances ta Suppliers 61.14 115.43 

Deposits & Redevables 106.77 32.36 

299.45 248.80 

17 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

lnterestAccrued on lnvestments 

on Fixed Deposit Accounts with maturity beyond 

12 months from Balance Sheet date 15.25 7.17 

15.25 7.17 

18: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sale of Products 6,622.89 5,364.02 

Incarne From Services 122.73 112.96 

6,745.61 5,476.99 

Particulars of Sales of Products 

Ultrasonic Eqiupments 5,139.66 3,556.03 

Others 1,483.23 1,807.99 

6,622.89 5,364.02 

19: OTHER INCOME 

Dividend Received 0.02 0.03 

1 nterest Received 56.27 33.04 

Miscellaneous Incarne 0.86 2.72 

Exchange Rate Fluctuation 56.00 185.13 

113.15 220.92 

20 : COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Opening Stock 961.75 1,049.89 

Add : Purchases 3,508.45 2,544.32 

4,470.20 3,594.22 

Less : Closing Stock 1,414.27 961.75 

3,055.92 2,632.47 

Details of Raw Materials Consumed 

Semi Conductor, Electronic Components, etc. 2,536.42 2,184.95 

Others 519.51 447.52 

3,055.92 2,632.47 

Consumgtion of lmgorted / lndigenous Materials : 

lmported 22% 672.30 35% 921.36 

lndigenous 78% 2,383.62 65% 1,711.10 

100% 3,055.92 100% 2,632.47 

21 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROCESS 

Finished Goods/ Work ln Progress: 

Opening Stock 104.90 169.88 

Less: Closing Stock 150.31 104.90 

(45.41} 64.98 

22 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 

Directors' Remuneration 50.85 106.05 

KMP Remuneration 53.22 63.84 

Salaries, Wages and Benefits 1,078.08 904.34 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 45.79 45.12 

Staff Welfare Expenses 35.33 57.43 

Gratuity Expenses 16.73 44.01 

1,280.00 1,220.79 

------�--
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Particulars 

23 : OTHER EXPENSES 

Electricity Charges 

lnsurance Charges (Net) 

Labour Charges 

Packing Charges (Net) 

Installation Charges 

Testing Charges 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 

Research & Development Expenses 

Commission on Sales 

Selling Expenses 

Advertisement & Publicity 

Transport & Delivery Charges 

Agency Expenses 

Rates, Taxes & Water Charges 

Printing & Stationery Expenses 

Communication Expenses 

Travelling & Conveyance Charges 

Legal & Professional Charges 

Motor Car Expenses 

Rent 

Sundry Expenses 

Bad Debts Written Off 

Audjtors' Remuneration· 

Audit Fees 

Tax Audit Fees 

Certification & Others 

Membership & Subscription 

CSR Expenses 

Director Sitting Fees 

Preliminary Expenses W/off 

Guaranttee Commission Paid to Director 

Lass on Sale of Fixed Assets 

24 : FINANCE COST 

1 nterest Expense 

On Working Capital Facilities 

On Term Loans 

On Others 

Other Borrowing Costs 

Bank & Finance Charges 

25 : EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARES 

Basic/ Diluted Earnings per Share 

ProfiU(Loss) attributable to Equity shareholders 

Weighted average number of equity shares 

Basic Earnings Per Share 

Face value per Share 

26 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS 

a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 

Counter Guarantee given ta Bankers in respect of Bank Guarantee furnished by them 

1.50 

0.75 

3.25 

49.74 

2.05 

0.11 

b) T he Company sells certain products with warranties. ln the opinion of the management the expected 

liability, if any, is not significant and hence, it is not provided. 

c) Please refer note as annexed as annexure 2(A) 

27 : CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS 

a) Raw Materials 

28 : NET DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

Final Dividend (Net of TDS) 

ASAT 

31.03.2024 

IRs. ln Lacsl 

64.21 

31.28 

46.96 

51.82 

-

0.06 

106.16 

94.81 

140.55 

52.59 

24.74 

128.50 

4.17 

5.39 

6.42 

16.16 

128.80 

187.80 

17.31 

103.59 

19.25 

64.63 

5.50 

40.03 

13.39 

2.00 

-

50.00 

2.83 

1 408.98 

51.91 

33.95 

85.86 

651.45 

69,66,524 

9.35 

10.00 

370.21 

-

749.72 

749.72 

-

Powerhouse Of Ultrasomc Technology 

Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

AS AT 

31.03.2023 

IRs. ln Lacsl 

60.59 

29.72 

40.55 

38.94 

0.02 

0.71 

108.73 

77.87 

46.69 

37.08 

31.65 

89.76 

19.72 

4.70 

6.26 

14.41 

90.88 

68.64 

21.49 

100.16 

21.78 

76.53 

1.50 

0.75 

3.25 5.50 

2.28 

11.00 

2.00 

5.46 

-

-

1 013.11 

50.03 

5.08 

25.93 

81.03 

25.98 

107.01 

388.81 

34,83,262 

11.16 

10.00 

231.08 

-

519.33 

519.33 

12.05 
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

ASAT ASAT 

Partlculars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 

29 : EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

a) Raw Materials Purchase 749.72 519.33 

b) Expenses for Foreign Travels 30.31 18.69 

c) Agency Expenses 4.17 19.72 

784.21 557.73 

30 - CAPITAL COMMITMENTS & ADVANCES 

a) Capital Commitment towards purchase of Software - - - -

b) Advance against above commitments - - - -

31 : RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

(a) Related party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18 - "Related Party Disclosures" are given 
below: 

1. Subsidiary Companies: 
a) RTUL Ultrasonix (Thailand) Co. Ltd. 

b) RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. BHD. 

Il. Directors : 
a) Dr. A. S. Trivedi 
b) Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi 
c) Mr. Kodur Rajagopalan Puthavitil 
d) Mrs. Karishma Vipul Tanna 
e) Mr. Natwarlal Vallabhdas Trivedi 

Ill. Key Managerial Personnel: 
a) Mr. Aditya A. Trivedi 

IV. Relative of Directors : 
a) Dr. A. S. Trivedi (HUF) 
b) S S Trivedi Foundation 
c) Kay lmpex Pvt Ltd 
d) Tetrasonix LLC 
e) 3A lnnovative Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 
f) Elio Tech LLP 
g) Adiv Pure Nature Products Pvt. Ltd. 

(b) Datails of transactions with ralatad parties: 
(Rs. ln Lacs\ 

Transactions for the Amou nt receivable / (payable) 
Particulars Vear ended on Vear ended on 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31 2024 March 31 2023 
Sales of Goods & AMC 
RTUL Ultrasonix (Thailand) Co. Ltd. 64.61 49.40 65.71 63.83 

RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. BHD. 50.51 66.51 75.19 76.01 
Tetrasonix LLC - 11.77 4.81 11.77 

Purchase of Goods and Services 
Kav lmoex Pvt Ltd 5.10 13.04 - 0.93 

Loans/advances Paid 
RTUL Ultrasonix (Thailand) Co. Ltd. - - 211.37 208.38 
RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. BHD. - - 94.25 92.92 

Rent Paid 
Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi 6.14 5.95 -

Deoosit taken / freoaid\ from Directors 
Dr. A.S. Trivedi - 50.00 / (50.0Q) -

A.S. Trivedl (HUF) 30.00 / (30.00) 10.00 / (114.00) -

Mrs. Ruca A. Trivedi - (14.50) -

Denosit taken / lreoaid\ from Kev Manaaerial Personnel 
Mr. Aditva A. Trivedi - 5.50 / (5.50) -

Remuneration Paid to Directors 
Dr. A.S. Trivedi 25.60 80.80 -

Mrs. Ruoa A. Trivedi 25.25 25.25 -

Sittina Fees Paid to Directors 
Mr. Kodur Ra"anonalan Puthavitil 2.00 2.00 -

Remuneration Paid to Kev Manaaerial Personnel 
Mr. Aditva A. Trivedi 53.22 63.84 -

lnterest Paid to Directors 
A.S. Trivedi - 0.92 -

Mrs. Ruaa A. Trivedi - 0.84 -

lnterest Paid to Kev Manaaerial Personnel 
Mr. Aditva A. Trivedi - 0.10 -

Commission Paid 
Dr. A.S. Trivedi 50.00 - (47.50) 

Tetrasonix LLC 44.39 - (22.65 

Relative of Directors : 
A.S. Trivedi (HUF) - 10.89 -

CSR Exoenses : 
SS Trivedi Foundation 13.00 11.00 -

lnvestment in Subsidiarv Comoanies 
RTUL Ultrasonix <Thailand) Co. Ltd. - - 0.06 0.06 

RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. BHD. - - 8.30 8.30 

------�--
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

ASAT ASAT 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

!Rs. ln Lacs\ !Rs. ln Lacs\ 

32 : EARNINGS IN FOREI GN CURRENCY 

Export Sales - On F.O.B. Value 1,112.03 1,090.77 

1,112.03 1,090.77 

33: DISCLOSURE AS PERA CCO UNT ING STANDARD 19 ON "LEASE" : 

Where the Com11anJ1 is a Lessee : 

i) The Company has taken office premises under operating lease or leave and licence agreements. These are generally cancellable and range between 11 months & five years. 

under leave and licence, or longer for other leases and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. 

ii) Lease / Rent payments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass as 'Rent' under 'Other expenses' in Note 24. 

iii) Future minimum lease rentai payable is as under: 

ASAT ASAT 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 

Within 1 Year 28.57 118.69 

Alter 1 Year but before 5 Years 108.00 474.74 

Alter 5 Years - -

iv) Land taken on lease have been amortised over the respective lease period and Rs. 5.87 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 5.87 Lacs) has been amortised during the year. 

34 : RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES 

The company has an ln house R & D Centre. The details of revenue expenditure incurred during the year by the said R & D Centre and charged to Statement of Profit & Lass 

Account is as under: 

ASAT ASAT 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 

Employee Benefit Expenses 63.20 52.93 

Cast of Materials consumed 11.67 8.79 

Other Expenses 19.94 16.15 

94.81 77.87 

35 : SE GMENT REPORTING 

Primary Segment : 

ln accordance with Accounting Standard 17, the Company has identified "Ultrasonic Equipments" as the only primary reportable business segment. 

Secondary Segment (by G eographical Segment) : ( Rs. ln Lacs l 

Parliculars Year Within lndia O utside lndia Total 

Segment Revenue 
2023-24 5,633.58 1,112.03 6,745.61 

2022-23 4,386.22 1,090.77 5,476.99 

Notes: 

The segment revenue in geographical segment considered for disclosures is as follows; 

i. Revenue within lndia includes sales to customers located within lndia and Other Operating Incarne earned in lndia. 

ii. Revenue outside lndia includes sales to customers located outside lndia and Other Operating Incarne earned outside lndia. 

36: FINANCIALAND O T HER DERIVA T IVE INSTRUMENTS 

Foreiqn Currencv exposure that are not hedqed bv the derivative instruments: 

Particulars Currency 
Balance A s  at March 31, 2024 Balance A s  al March 31, 2023 

ln Foreian Currencv 1 Rs. ln Lacs \ ln Foreian Currencv 1 Rs. ln Lacs \ 

USD 1.91 159.14 2.75 226.22 

Export Trade Receivables EURO 0.31 28.31 (0.09) (8.00 

CHF 1.45 133.77 1.06 94.93 

USD I0.05' (4.56 I0.23\ (19.10 

Import Trade Payables EURO 0.26 22.98 0.09 7.80 

CHF (0.04' (3.24 (0.24) (21.91 

Advances given to Subsidiaries USD 3.67 305.62 3.67 301.30 

------�--
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Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

37 : INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIRIES 

As at 31 March, 2024 the Company has total investment amounting to Rs. 8.36 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 8.36 Lacs) in ils wholly owned subsidia ries namely "RTUL Ultrasonic 
SDN. BHD." and "RTUL Ultrasonic (Thailand) Co. Ltd.". The Company has aise provided loans amounting to Rs. 305.62. Lacs (Previous Year Rs 301.30 Lacs) to !und the 
operations of ils subsidiaries. These being long term and strategic investments, the management are of the view that there is no diminution other !han temporary in the value of 
. these investments 

38 : CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSES 

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the Year: Rs.13.39 Lacs (31 March 2023: Rs 11.00 Lacs). 

b. Amount spent during the Year on: ( Rs. ln Lacs 1 

ln cash Yet to be paid in cash 
Particulars 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Construction/acquisition of any asse! - - -

On purposes other than above 13.39 11.00 -

Total 13.39 11.00 -

c. Related party transaction in relation to corporate social responsibility : 13.00 Lacs (31 March 2023: 11.00) Lacs. 

d. Provision during the Year 31 March 2024 : Nil 

39 - The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 

Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Variance 

(al Current ratio (al 3.13 3.06 2% 
(bl Gross Debt / Equitv ratio (bl&(ml 0.12 0.15 -22% 

l(cl Net Debl / Equity ratio (c)&(m) -0.44 -0.55 -25% 
(d) Debl Service Coverage ratio (d) & (n) 8.85 5.09 43% 

l!el Return on Eauitv (ROE) ( e l&(ol 0.12 0.08 32% 
(Il lnventorv turnover ratio (fi 5.13 4.79 7%
/al Trade receivables turnover ratio (al 7.43 6.48 13% 
(hl Trade payables turnover ratio (hl 8.54 8.95 -5% 
(il Net capital turnover ratio (il 1.67 1.39 17% 
(il Net profil ratio (j)&(ol 0.09 0.07 28% 
(k) Return on capital employed (ROCE) (k) 0.33 0.27 17% 
(1) Return on investment (ROii m& fol 0.06 0.03 0% 

Note: 

(1) Formula used for calculation :

(a) Current Ratio = Current assets / (Current liabilities - Current maturities of long term borrowings) 
(b) Gross Debl / Equity Ratio = (Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings + Non-current lease liabilities + Current lease liabilities) / Total equity 
(c) Net Debt / Equity Ratio = Net debt / Total equity 

Net Debt = (Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings + Non-current lease liabilities + Current lease liabilities - (Cash, cash equivalents and Other bank balances+ Margin 
money (non-current) + lnvestment in Quated Mutual Funds + Amount held as margin money against borrowings)) 

(d) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) = EBITDA / (lnterest paid + Other finance charges paid + Principal repayments of long-term borrowings + Payment of lease liabilities) 

(e) Return of Equity (RoE) = Net profit after taxes/ Average Equity 
(f) lnventory turnover ratio = Revenue !rom operations / Average Inventories 
(g) Debtors turnover ratio = Revenue !rom operations / Average Trade and unbilled receivables 
(h) Trade payables turnover ratio = Total expenses excluding Employee benefit expenses / Average Trade payables 
(i) Net capital turnover ratio = Revenue !rom operations / Working capital where Working capital = Current Assets - (Current liabilities - Current maturities of long term borrowings) 
ü) Net profit ratio = Net Profil/ (Lass) after taxes/ Total incarne 
(k) Return on capital employed (ROCE) = (Profit/ (Lass) before tax + Finance costs + Depreciation on Righi-of-use assets) / (Total Equity - Intangible Assets - Intangible Assets 

under development + Net Debt) 
(1) Return on investment (ROI) = Incarne generared !rom investments / Time weighted average investments 

(Il) Reasons for variances: 

(m) Decrease in borrowing has resulted variance in Net Debt / Equity ratio & Gross Debt / Equity ratio 
(n) Principal payment of Long Term Debl during the year and increase in profil rsulted into variation of Debt service coverage ratio 
(o) Movement in Return on equity, ROCE and Net Profit ratioo are due to increase in profit during the year. 
(p) Reason for deviation in Return on investment (ROI) is due to increase in interest incarne. 
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40. Please refer note as annexed as annexure 2(A).

41. There are no significant events that would require adjustment or disclosures in the financial statements.

42. Other matters

a. No proceeding has been initialed or pending againsl the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and ru les

made thereunder.

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter (in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of lndia) by any bank or financial

Institution or other lender.

c. The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

d. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

e. The Company has no! advanced or loaned or invested funds (eilher borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or enlily(ies),

including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the lntermediary shall:

(i) directly or indireclly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

f. The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 and and there is no previously unrecorded income and related assets that are required to be recorded in the books of account during the year.

g. There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory year.

h. Other information with regards to other matters specified in Schedule Ill to the Act, is either Nil or not applicable to the Company.

43 : Figures of the previous year have been regrouped and rearranged to confirm with this yea�s grouping wherever necessary. 

As per our Report of even date 

For PARIKH & PARIKH 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 107526W 

Milan G. Parikh 

Proprietor 

M.No.: 38557

UDIN : 24038557BKAIUG9381 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 15th October,2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED. 

( Formerly known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LIMITED.) 

CIN : U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 

Chairman & Director 

DIN : 00575030 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 15th October,2024 

Rupa A. Trivedi 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 00370081 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

PARIKH & PARIKH 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

480,Kalbadevi Road. 42,Dahanukar Bldg., 
Opp. Round Building, 2nd Floor, 

Mumbai - 400 002. 

TO THE MEMBERS OF ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED (Formerly Known as ROOP TELSONIC 
ULTRASONIX LIMITED.) 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ROOP ULTRASONIX 
LIMITED (Formerly Known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LIMITED) (hereinafter referred to 
as "the Holding Company"), and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 st March, 2024, 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year 
then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated Financial Statements"). 

ln absence of audited financial statements of the Subsidiary Companies, we have relied on 
unaudited financial statements prepared & furnished by the management. 

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in lndia: 

(a) ln the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Holding Company as at 31st
March, 2024,

(b) ln the case of Statement of its profits and Loss, of the profits for the year ended on that
date,

( c) 1 n the case of Cash flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
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Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (ICAI) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Ru les thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed, in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters except as under: 

The Company petition (no. 57 of 2023) has been filed along with a Company Application u/s241 and 
242 of The Companies Act, 2023 before the Honorable National Company Law Tribunal, (NCLT) 
Mumbai against the Company & it's promoter group byTelsonic Holding AG. 

Thereafter, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ('NCL T') passed an order 
dated 28th July,2023 in respect of the rights issue which was completed by the Company in financial 
year ('FY') 22-23. The Company has filed an appeal against the same with the Hon'ble National 
Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi Bench ('NCLAT'). So, till the pendency of the appeal, legal 
opinion was sought by the Company while preparing the financial statements for FY 23-24 with 
respect to the impact of the aforesaid order dated 28th July, 2023. Taking the said legal opinion into 
consideration, the Company retained the amount received under the rights issue as the same had 
already been deployed prior to the order of the NCLT dated 28th July, 2023 and there was no stay by 
the regulatory authorities till that date. However, basis the above, the amount of rights issue was not 
returned and voting is being conducted considering pre-rights issue voting rights. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is other information included in Board of 
Directors An nuai Report including Annexures to such report but does not include the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not caver the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

ln connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information, compare with the unaudited Financial Statements of the subsidiary prepared 
and furnished by the management, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place 
reliance on the work of the management and consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it 
relates to the subsidiary, is traced from their financial statements prepared& furnished by the 
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management 's Responsibilityforthe Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in lndia, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internai financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statement by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

ln preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
company included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in Group are also responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Grou p. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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• ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internai contrai; 

• Obtain an understanding of internai financial contrai relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the holding company has adequate internai financial 

contrais system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrais. 

· • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

· • Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we 

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 

related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 

going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or

business activities within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial

Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the

financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the Consolidated Financial

Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entity or business activities included

in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared by other auditors, such other

auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by

the m. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

Consolidated Financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 

the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the holding Company and such other entity included 

in the Consolidated Financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internai contrai that we identify du ring our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 

of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of subsidiaries, whose 

financial statements / financial information reflects total assets of 141.09 Lacs as at March 31, 2024 and total 

revenues of 154.33 Lacs and net cash inflows of (24.25) Lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered 

in the Consolidated Financial Statements. This financial statement and other financial information are 

unaudited and prepared & furnished by the management. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 

included in respect of this subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in 

so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report prepared and furnished to us by 

the management. 

Our opinion above on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work 

done and the reports prepared and furnished by the management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report

prepared and furnished by the management, on separate financial statement of subsidiaries, referred in

the other matter paragraph above, we report to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial

statements.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements have been kept by the holding Company so far as it appears from our

examination of th ose books and the reports furnished by the management.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass and the

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the

relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial

Statements.
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d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received fram the directors of the holding
Company as on 31

st 

March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the holding
Company none of the directors of the Graup Companies incorporated in lndia is disqualified as
on 31

st 

March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internai financial contrais over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrais, refer to our separate report in
"Annexure A" which is based on the auditors' reports of the holding Company and a subsidiary
company incorporated in lndia. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of internai financial contrais over financial reporting of Subsidiary.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in theAuditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,ln our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/pravided by the
subsidiaries incorporated in lndia, to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report furnished by the management on separate financial statements as
also the other financial information, noted in the "Other matter" paragraph:

1. The Company petition (no. 57 of 2023) has been filed along with a Company Application
u/s241 and 242 of The Companies Act, 2013 before the Honorable National Company Law
Tribunal,(NCL T) Mumbai against the Company & it's pramoter graup by Telsonic Holding AG.

Thereafter, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ('NCL T') passed an 
order dated 28th July,2023 in respect of the rights issue which was completed by the Company in 
financial year ('FY') 22-23. The Company has filed an appeal against the same with the Hon'ble 
National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi Bench ('NCLAT'). So, till the pendency of the 
appeal, legal opinion was sought by the Company while preparing the financial statements for FY 
23-24 with respect to the impact of the aforesaid order dated 28th July, 2023. Taking the said
legal opinion into consideration, the Company retained the amount received under the rights
issue as the same had already been deployed prior to the order of the NCL T dated 28th July,
2023 and there was no stay by the regulatory authorities till that date. However, basis the above,
the amount of rights issue was not returned and voting is being conducted considering pre-rights
issue voting rights.

ii. The Graup did not have material foreseeable lasses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

------�--
Powerhouse Of Ultrasonic Technology 73 



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The respective Managements of the holding company and its subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in lndia whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent or any
of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The respective Managements of the holding company and its subsidiary which are companies
incorporated in lndia whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been received by the
holding company or any of such subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Parent or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiary which are
companies incorporated in lndia whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has corne to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under h
(iv) (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

d) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Parent/ Holding
Company du ring the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

As stated in Note to the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of the Parent have 
proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with 
section 123 of the Act, as applicable. 
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2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO"/ "the Order'') issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and explanations
given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of respective
companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the holding company, we report that there
are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the
said companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FOR PARIKH & PARIKH 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 107526W 

(MILAN G. PARIKH) 
PROPRIETOR 
M. NO. 038557
UDIN:24038557BKAIUH1644

PLACE: MUMBAI 
DATE : 15

th 
Oct., 2024.
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under paragraph "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of the 

lndependentAuditors' Report of even date) 

Report on the Internai Financial Controls un der Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act. 

ln conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year 

ended 31
st 

March, 2024, we have audited the internai financial contrais over financial reporting of the Graup 

as of that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internai Financial Controls: 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internai financial contrais 

based on the internai contrai over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internai contrai stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internai Financial Contrais 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (ICAI). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internai financial 

contrais that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the CompaniesAct, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility: 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internai financial contrais over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internai Financial Contrais Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the Standards 

onAuditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, 

to the extent applicable to an audit of internai financial contrais. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internai financial contrais over financial reporting were established and 

maintained and if such contrais operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing pracedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internai 

financial contrais system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internai 

financial contrais over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internai financial contrais 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internai contrai based on the assessed risk. The pracedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the evidence obtained by the management 

associate company, which is a company incorporated in lndia, in terms of their representation referred to in 

the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and apprapriate to pravide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

internai financial contrais system over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial 

statements. 
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Meaning of Internai Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 

A Company's internai financial contrai over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internai 

financial contrai over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflected the

transactions and de positions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

Directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that cou Id have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of Internai Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 

Because of the inherent limitations of internai financial contrais over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrais, material misstatements due to errer or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internai financial contrais over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internai financial contrai over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion: 

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internai financial contrais system over 

financial reporting and such internai financial contrais over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2024, based on the internai contrai over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internai contrai stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internai 

Financial Contrais Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. 

FOR PARIKH & PARIKH 
CHART ER EDACCOUNTANTS 
FRN: 1075

2
6W

(MILAN G. PARIKH) 
PROPRIETOR 
M. NO. 038557
UDIN :24038557BKAIUH1644 

P LAC E: MUMBAI 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2024 

PARTICULARS 

1 EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

Share Holders" Funds 

Share Capital 

Reserves and Surplus 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Long Term Borrowings 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Long Term Provisions 

Current Liabilities 

Short Term Borrowings 

Trade Payables 

Other Current Liabilities 
Short Term Prtovisons 

TOTAL 

Il ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 

Fixed Assets 

Tangible Assets 

Intangible Assets 

Capital work-in progress 

Intangible Assets under Development 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Non-Current lnvestments 

Long Term Loans and Advances 

Current Assets 

Inventories 

Trade Receivables 

Cash and Cash equivalents 

Short Term Loans and Advances 

Other Current Assets 

TOTAL 

Notes (lncluding Significant Accounting Policies 

Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

As per our Report of even date 

For PARIKH& PARIKH 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 107526W 

Milan G. Parikh 

Proprietor 

M.No.: 38557 

UDIN:24038557BKAIUH1644

Place : Mumbai

Date : 1 5th Oct., 2024

As At As At 

Note No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 
10 

11 

5 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

1 - 38 

696.65 

4,058.23 

4,754.88 

-

33.43 

154.51 

187.94 

690.93 

1,069.18 

603.20 
4.10 

2,367.41 

7,310.23 

1,361.99 
-

-

-

1,361.99 

-

3.23 

18.02 

21.25 

1,604.52 

854.55 

3,137.17 

315.50 

15.25 

5,926.99 

7,310.23 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

ROOP ULTRASONIX LTD. 

992.74 

3,469.09 

4,461.83 

6.43 
-

349.33 

355.76 

784.71 

912.43 

696.25 
0.94 

2,394.33 

7,211.93 

1,267.76 

1,267.76 

5.08 

3.23 

61.75 

1,337.82 

1,107.76 

819.72 

3,673.73 

265.74 

7.17 

5,874.10 

7,211.93 

( Formerly known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LTD.) 

CIN : U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 

Chairman & Director 

DIN : 00575030 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 15th Oct., 2024 

Rupa A. Trivedi 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 00370081 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024 

PARTICULARS 

Revenue from Operations 

Other lncome 

Total Incarne 

Expenses: 

Cost of Materials Consumed 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 

and Work-in-process 

Employee Benefits Expenses 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 

amortisation (EBITDA) 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation and amortization Expenses 

Profit before Tax 

Tax Expense: 

Current Tax 

Current Tax adjustment of earlier years 

Deferred Tax 

Profit / (Loss) for the Year 

Earnings per Equity Share: 

Basic and Diluted 

Notes (lncluding Significant Accounting Policies) 

Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

As per our Report of even date 

For PARIKH& PARIKH 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 107526W 

Milan G. Parikh 

Proprietor 

M.No.: 38557 

UDIN:24038557BKAIUH1644

Place : Mumbai

Date : 1 5th Oct., 2024

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 

Note No. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

11 

26 

1 - 38 

31.03.2024 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

6,783.99 

113.99 

6,897.98 

3,073.63 

(57.84) 

1,300.12 

1,479.57 

5,795.48 

1,102.50 

85.89 

142.08 

874.52 

190.16 

51.62 

38.51 

280.29 

594.23 

8.53 

31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

5,554.88 

220.92 

5,775.80 

2,649.41 

51.38 

1,238.86 

1,076.63 

5,016.28 

759.52 

107.01 

134.34 

518.18 

144.00 

(7.24) 

136.76 

381.42 

10.80 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

ROOP ULTRASONIX LTD. 

( Formerly known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LTD.) 

CIN: U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 

Chairman & Director 

DIN : 00575030 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 15th Oct., 2024 

Rupa A. Trivedi 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 00370081 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Particulars 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit before taxation 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation on fixed assets 

Finance Cast 

Deduct: 

Dividend Received 

lnterest incarne 

Effect of exchange rates on translation of operating cashflows 

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 

Adjustments for : 

(lncrease) / Decrease in inventories 

(lncrease) / Decrease in trade receivables 

(lncrease) / Decrease in loans and advances & other current assets 

lncrease / (Decrease) in trade payables & other current liabilties 

lncrease / (Decrease) in provisions 

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Incarne tax Paid / Adjustments 

Net Cash inflow from/ (outflow) from Operating activities 

B. Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Sale of fixed assets 

lnterest received 

Dividend received 

Net Cash inflow from/ (outflow) from lnvesting activities 

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

Proceeds from issue of right equity shares 

Proceeds from shares application money 

Refund of shares application money 

Repayment of borrowings / Loan Taken 

Finance Cast 

Dividend paid 

Net Cash inflow from/ (outflow) from Financing activities 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C ) 

Add: Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of: 

Cash on hand 

Other Bank Balances 

- On Current Accounts 

- On Unpaid Dividend Accounts 

- On Fixed Deposit Accounts (On Margin on Bank Guarantees) 

A 

B 

C 

Year ended 

March 31, 2024 

874.52 

142.08 

85.89 

(0.02) 

(56.27) 

(5.09} 

1,041.11 

(496.76) 

(34.83) 

(14.12) 

63.69 

(191.66} 

367.43 

(241.78) 

125.65 

(260.99) 

24.68 

56.27 

0.02 

(180.02) 

(296.09) 

(100.21) 

(85.89) 

(482.19) 

(536.56) 

3,673.73 

3,137.17 

6.78 

2,290.36 

23.17 

816.86 

3,137.17 

As per our report of even date 

For Parikh & Parikh 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

ROOP ULTRASONIX LTD. 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

518.18 

134.34 

107.01 

(0.03) 

(33.04) 

(39.68} 

686.78 

139.52 

(93.19) 

(62.48) 

225.17 

37.37 

933.16 

(144.00) 

789.16 

(78.06) 

33.04 

0.03 

(45.00) 

348.33 

296.09 

(281.72) 

(107.01) 

(34.83) 

220.85 

965.01 

2,708.72 

3,673.73 

10.67 

2,750.85 

28.07 

884.13 

3,673.73 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 107526W 

( Formerly known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTRASONIX LTD.) 

CIN: U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Milan G. Parikh 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 038557 

UDIN:24038557BKAIUH1644 

Place: Mumbai. 

Date : 15th Oct., 2024 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 

Chairman & Director 

DIN : 00575030 

Place: Mumbai. 

Date : 15th Oct., 2024 

Rupa A. Trivedi 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 00370081 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Company overview 

Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. (Formerly Known as Roop Telsonic Ultrasonix Ltd.) (the "Company") is a 

company domiciled in I ndia and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (the 

"Act"). The Company along with its Subsidiaries ('The Group") is in the business of manufacturing 

and sale of various ultrasonic equipment and its accessories. The Group is also engaged in 

providing services of the said equipment. 

1. SignificantAccounting Policies:

1.1 Basis of preparation of consol idated fi nancial statement: 

These consolidated financial statements (CFS) of the Group have been prepared in accordance 

with the generally accepted accounting principles in lndia (lndian GAAP) under the historical cost 

convention as also on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply with 

the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read 

with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ru les, 2014('the Accounting Standards') and the relevant 

provisions of the Act (to the extent notified). ln the light of the first proviso to Section 129 (1) of the Act 

and Schedule Ill to the Act, the items and terms contained in these consolidated financial 

statements are in accordance with theAccounting Standards. 

1.2 Basis of Consolidation: 

a. The CFS has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 21
(AS 21 )- 'Consolidated Financial Statements'.

b. The CFS has been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances:

1) The Financial statements of the Parent Company together with unaudited financial statements,
as furnished by the management, of its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line to line
basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, incarne and expenses, The subsidiaries are
consolidated from acquisition date till the date they cease to become a subsidiary. The intra group
balances and intra group transactions and unrealized profit or lasses have been fully eliminated
unless cost cannot be recovered.

ii) The excess of the cost to the company of its investment in a subsidiary over the Company's
portion of equity of the subsidiary, at the year end, is accounted as Goodwill; when the cost to the
Company of its investment in the subsidiary is less than the Company's portion of equity of the
subsidiary, at the year end, the difference is accounted as Capital Reserve.
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c. The subsidiaries considered in the preparation of the CFS and the shareholding of the Company
in these Companies is as follows:

Subsidiaries 
Country of Ownership 

Incorporation interest 

RTUL Ultrasonix (Thailand) Co.Ltd. Thailand 100% 

RTUL Ultrasonix SDN.BHD. Malaysia 100% 

1.3 Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

(GMP) in lndia requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of 

the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. 

Examples of such estimates includes provisions for doubtful receivables, employee benefits, 

provision for incarne taxes, the useful lives of the depreciable fixed assets and provision for 

impairment. Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference 

between the actual result and the estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are 

known / materialised. 

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipments (Tangible/Intangible): 

(a) Land (Leasehold) is valued at cost less amortisation.

(b) Other Fixed assets are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated
depreciation/amortization. The cost of fixed assets includes taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from tax authorities), duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the
acquisition and installation of the respective assets. lnterest on borrowed funds directly attributable
to the qualifying assets up to the period such assets are put to use, is included in the cost.

(c) Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

1.5 Depreciation and Amortisation: 

(a) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives
and residual values of assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of The Companies Act,
2013.

(b) Leasehold land is being amortised on the straight line method over the period of lease.

© Intangible assets viz Deferred Revenue Expenditure is amortised on the straight line method 
over their estimated useful life of5years. 
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1.6 lmpairment: 

At Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment in the carrying amount of the Company's fixed assets. If any such indication exists, the 
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

An assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an 
impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If any such indication exists the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The carrying 
amount of the fixed asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but so that 
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversai of 
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass. 

After recognition of impairment loss or reversai of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation is 
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. 

1. 7 Revenue Recognition:

(a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognised only when it can be reliably measured and it is
reasonable to expect ultimate collection. The amount recognised as sale is exclusive of GST and is
net of returns.

(b) Revenue from service is recognised on rendering of services to customers.

( c) Dividend in corne is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(d) lnterest incarne is recognised on the time proportion basis.

1.8 Lease accounting: 

Where the company is lessee 

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of 
the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an 
expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

1.9 Inventories: 

(a) Raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, stores, spares, traded items and
consumables are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The comparison of cost and
net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged, unserviceable and inert stocks are
suitably depreciated.

(b) ln determining cost of raw materials, traded items, stores, spares and consumables,
weighted average cost method is used. Cast of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, duties,
taxes ( other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and ail other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. 
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(c) Cast of finished goods and work-in-process includes the cost of raw materials, an
appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads, excise duty as applicable and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Fixed production
overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

1.10 lnvestments: 

Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long term 

investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the 

management. Current investments are carried at cost. The comparison of cost and fair value is 

done separately in respect of each category of investments. 

Profit and loss on sale of investments is determined on a first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis. 

1.11 Transactions in Foreign Exchange: 

(a) Initial Recognition :

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the 

transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year 

are recognised in the Profit and LossAccount of the year. 

(b) Conversion :

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are outstanding as at the 

year-end are translated at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are 

recognised in the Profit and Lass Account. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of 

historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date 

of the transaction. 

(c) Exchange difference :

Ali other exchange differences are recognised as incarne or as expenses in the period in which they 

arise. The premium or discount on forward exchange contracts is recognized over the period of the 

contracts in the Profit and LossAccount. 

(d) Translation of non-integral foreign operation :

Foreign operations of the Group are classified under non-integral foreign operations. ln translating 

the financial statements of non-integral foreign operations for incorporation in financial statements, 

the assets and liabilities, bath monetary and non-monetary, of the non-integral foreign operations 

are translated at closing rate, statement pf Profit and loss of the non-integral operations are 

translated at the monthly average exchange rate; all the resulting differences are accumulated in 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR) until the disposai of the net inve ment. 
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On the disposai of a non-integral foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange 
differences which have been deferred and which relate to that operation are recognized as income 
or expenses in the same period in which gain or loss on disposai is recognized. 

When there is a change in the classification of a foreign operation, the translation procedures 

applicable to the revised classification are applied from the date of the change in the classification. 

1.12 Sundry Debtors: 

Sundry debtors are stated after writing off debts considered as bad. Adequate provision is made for 

debts considered doubtful. 

1.13 Employee Benefits: 

A. Short Term Employee Benefits

Ali employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 

short term employee benefits and they are recognised in the period in which the employee renders 

the related service. The Company recognises the undiscounted amount of short term employee 

benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after 

deducting any amount already paid. 

B. Post-Employment Benefits

Company's contribution to Recognised Provident fund is charged to Profit & LossA/c. 

The Company has taken a policy with LIC for the payment of Gratuity. The premium on the policy is 
debited to provision for g ratu ity accou nt in the year of payment. 

1.14 lncome Tax: 

Tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance 

with the lncome Tax Act, 1961) & deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing 

differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period). 

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are 
recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance 
Sheet date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets 
can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss 
under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of 
realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each Balance Sheet date to 
reassess realisation. 

------�--
Powerhouse Of Ultrasonic Technology 85 



ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

1.15 Provisions and Contingencies: 

The Company creates a provision when there exists a present obligation as a result of a past 
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible 
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. 
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of 
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

1.16 Earnings Per Share: 

The Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit after 

taxfor the year by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding du ring the year. 

1.17 Borrowing Costs: 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are 

capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Ali other borrowing costs are 

charged to Profit and Lass account. 

1.18 Proposed Dividend: 

The Company recognises a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end 

reporting period when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the 

discretion of the company on or before the end of the reporting period.Acorresponding amount 

is recognised directly in equity. 

1.19 Research & Developments: 

Revenue Expenditure on Research & Development is charged against the profit of the year in 

which it is incurred and capital expenditure is shown as additions to Fixed Assets. 

1.20 Measurement of EBITDA: 

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Act, the Company has 
elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a 
separate line Item on the face of the statement of the profit and loss. The Company measures 
EBITDA on the basis of profit from continuing operations. ln its measurement, the Company 
does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance cost and tax expense. 

1.21 Segment Reporting Policies: 

Primary segment is identified based on the nature of products, the different risks and returns 

and the internai business reporting system. Secondary Segment is identified based on the 

geographical location of its customers. 
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the acco 
adopted for preparing and resentin the financial statements of the Corn an 
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ASAT ASAT 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

/Rs.in Lacs\ /Rs.in Lacs\ 
2 : SHARE CAPITAL 

(a) AUTHORISED 
97,50,000 (Pr. Year 97,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 975.00 975.00 

975.00 975.00 

(b} ISSU ED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP : 
69,66,524 ( Pr. Year 69,66,524 ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up.* 696.65 696.65 

Share Application Money - 296.09 
Excess Share Application Money Collected, ta be Refunded 

696.65 992.74 

* Note 

Please refer note as annexed as annexure 2(A) 

(c) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstandina and amount of share caoital at the beainnina and at the end of the vear: 
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

No. of Shares 
Rs. (in Lacs) 

No. of Shares 
Rs. (in Lacs) 

(in Lacs) (in Lacs) 

Ooenino Balance 69.67 696.65 34.83 348.33 
Add : Shares issued - - 34.83 348.33 
Less : Shares bouaht back - - - -

Add/Less : Other movements - - - -

Closinq Balance 69.67 696.65 69.67 696.65 

(dl Details of shares held bv shareholders holdino more than 5% of the ao, reoate eauitv shares in the Comoanv: 
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Name of the Shareholder Relationship No. of Shares 
%held 

No. of Shares 
%held 

(in Lacs) (in Lacs) 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi CMD 22.09 31.71 22.09 31.71 

A. S. Trivedi (HUF) - 8.98 12.88 8.98 12.88 

Mrs. Ruoa A. Trivedi Director 8.42 12.08 8.42 12.08 
Key 
Managerial 

Mr. Aditva A. Trivedi Persan 6.71 9.63 6.71 9.63 
Body 
Corporate 

Telsonic Aa. Shareholder 13.14 18.86 13.14 18.86 
Body 
Corporate 

Telsonic Holdina Aa. Shareholder 0.25 0.36 0.25 0.36 

(e) Information on equity shares alloted without receipt of cash or alloted as bonus shares or shares bought back - Nil. 

(f) Terms / rights attached ta Equity Shares 

i) The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 

entitled ta one vote per share. 

ii) The holding Company declares and pays dividends in lndian Rupees. Payment of dividend is also made in foreign currency ta shareholders outside 

lndia. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject ta the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing An nuai General Meeting, 

except in the case of lnterim dividend. 

iii) As per the Companies Act, 2013, the holders of equity shares will be entitled ta receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution 

of all preferential amounts in the event of liquidation of the Company. However no such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution 

will be in proportion ta the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Shareholding of Promoters 

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Name of Shareholder Number of shares % of total 
Number of 

% of total % Change during 
shares (in 

(in Lacs) shares the year shares % Change during 

Lacs) theyear 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 22.09 31.71 - 22.09 31.71 -

A. S. Trivedi (HUF) 8.98 12.88 - 8.98 12.88 -

Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi 8.42 12.08 - 8.42 12.08 -
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ANNEXURE 2(A) OF NOTES FORMING PARTS OF CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31.03.2024. 

1.One of the shareholders i.e, Telsonic Group of Roop Ultrasonix Limited (' Company') named Telsonic Holding AG, terminated the

Shareholder's Agreement ('SHA') with effect from 04'" April, 2022 and its representative director i.e., Mr. Axel Vietze resigned from the board

of the Company with effect from 05'" October, 2022. ln light of above events, they were disclosed as promoter group of the Company merely

on account of SHA being in effect. Further, Telsonic Group ceased to be the promoter group of the Company vide board resolution passed by

the board of directors in the board meeting held on 22"d November, 2022 where Telsonic was reclassified as a public shareholder.

2.Basis an email dated 12'" October, 2005, received from Telsonic, the Company changed its Register of Members ('RoM') to reflect the

shareholder as TelsonicAG in good faith while awaiting necessary governmental documents from Telsonic Group to prove the same. From

then onwards, the An nuai Return and An nuai Reports reflected two different entities of Telsonic Group which was never verified des pite of

the tact that the representative of Telsonic Group being on the board himself. There is no other entity apart from the Telsonic Group that has

been paid dividend.

3.Thereafter, the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ('NCL T') passed an orderdated 28'" July, 2023 in respect of the rights

issue which was completed by the Company in financial year ('FY') 22-23. Thereafter, the Company filed an appeal against the same with the

Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi Bench ('NCLAT'). So, till the pendency of the appeal, legal opinion was sought by

the Company while filing the financial statements for FY ended 22-23 with respect to the impact of the aforesaid order dated 28'" July, 2023.

Taking the said legal opinion into consideration, the Company retained the a mou nt received under the rights issue as the same had already

been deployed prior to the order of the NCLT dated 28'" July, 2023 and there was no stay by the regulatory authorities till that date. However, 

basis the above NCLT order, voting is being conducted considering pre-rights issue shareholding.

4. Further, during the pendency of the Hon'ble NCLAT appeal and basis the records maintained by the Company, it came to light that Telsonic

AG is the only Company who has been allotted equity shares and is the sole recipient of dividend and royalty from the Company.

5.Due to afflux of time, the Company had forgotten that two different disclosures were being given i.e., one in the an nuai reports of the Company

(where TelsonicAG was shown as the shareholder) and one in the list of shareholders attached to the e-form MGT-7 (where Telsonic Holding

AG was shown as the shareholder).

6. Later on, Telsonic Group requested the RTA for dematerialization of its equity shares and vide its various emails and letters sought

confirmation from the Company that 13, 14,101 equity shares stood in the name of Telsonic Holding AG. Further, the Company responded to

the said emails to seek governmental records for the same. Meanwhile, the Company went into whatever historical records that could be

made available after facing hardships and difficulties and came across the tact that certain categoric representations made by the Telsonic

Group is taise and incorrect and the shareholding ofTelsonic Group is also erroneous and the Telsonic Group filing the application, in NCLT,

did not have requisite stake in the Company to file the Company Petition stating the tacts with respect to its shareholding in the Company.

7. Considering the above tacts, the Company is now of the opinion that the complete shareholding of about 38.45% is not solely in the name of

Telsonic Holding AG. Further, the Company is also confused with the shareholding of the two Telsonic Group Companies. ln light of above,

the Company's shareholding is as follows:

a. TelsonicAG: 13,14,101

b. Telsonic Holding AG: 25,300

8.The Company is taking all necessary steps, and has filed a Company Petition No. 97 of 2024 before the Hon'ble NCLT with respect to the

rectification of register of members in this regard through its legal counsels. Order for the same is pending; hence impacts of same on 

financial position cannot be quantified. However, for all the purposes Company has considered shareholding prior to rights issue only. 
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ASAT ASAT 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs.in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs) 

3 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

(a) Capital Reserve -As per last B/Sheet 15.00 15.00 

(b) Capital Reserve on Consolidation 32.18 34.28 

(c) Securities Premium Reserve 416.56 416.56 

(d) General Reserve 

As per las! Balance Sheet 981.00 881.00 

Add:Transfer from Statement of Profit & Lass 100.00 100.00 

1,081.00 981.00 

(e) Foreign Currency Translaion Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 300.91 342.62 

Add: Currency translation gain/(loss) during the year (2.99 297.92 (41.71 300.91 

(f) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Opening Balance as per las! Financial Statement 1,721.34 1,474.75 

Add: Net Profit after Tax tfd. From Statement of Profit and 594.23 381.42 

Lass Accou nt 

Less : Prior Period Adjustments - -

Aggrogriations: 

T fd. to General Reserve 100.00 100.00 
Dividend Paid on Equity Shares - 34.83 

Closing Balance 2,215.56 1,721.34 

Total 4,058.23 3,469.09 

4 : LONG TERM BORROWI NGS 

Secured: 

Term Loans (Refer Note**) 

From Banks - 45.07 

From other parties - Financial Institutions - -

- 45.07 

Less : Current maturities of long term debts - - 38.64 6.43 

Unsecured: 

Deposits From Shareholders - -

- 6.43 

**Note: 

1 Terms of reoavment of loans: 

Repayable in 

Name of Bank Period of total Amount of Rate of 

maturity No. of lnstalment lnterest 

monthlv 

lnstalments (Rs. ln Lacs) 

Secured 

Term Loans 

Central Bank of lndia - 115.91 Lacs Mav, 2024 36 3.22 7.50% 

5 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILI TY (NET) 

As required by Accounting Standard 22 on "Accounting of Taxes on Incarne", Deferred Taxes have been recognised in respect of following 

items: 

ASAT ASAT 

I tems of Timing Difference 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Depreciation and amortisation 72.31 82.84 

Gross Deffered Tax Liabilities 72.31 82.84 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Provision on employee benefits 38.89 87.92 

Gross Deffered Tax Assets 38.89 87.92 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities upto the year end (33.43) 5.08 

Add : Opening Balance 5.08 2.16 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities for the year (38.51) (7.24) 
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Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

ASAT ASAT 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 
6 : LONG TERM PROVISIONS 
Provision for employee benefits 

For Gratuity 154.51 349.33 
For lncome Tax - -

154.51 349.33 

7 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
Loans repayable on demand (Refer Note) 
- Secured

From Banks 
Working Capital Loan 690.93 784.71 

690.93 784.71 
Deposits From Shareholders 
- Unsecured

From Others - -

- -

690.93 784.71 

Note: 

1. Cash Credit / Working Capital Demand Loan, from Central Bank of lndia is secured by hypothecation of lnventory and Receivables of the company, both,
present and future, as well as by the mortgage of the specified immovable properties and movable assets of the company and persona! guarantees of
Directors.
2. These loans carry an interest rate range as mentioned below:
a) Working Capital Loan:

Cash Credit 8.75% 
Packing Credit 5.85% 

3) The company has availed short term borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The

company is required to file periodic returns with banks, including those related to current assets. The returns are extracted from audited /

unaudited financial information provided by the Company, summary of which are tabulated below,

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

Quarter Name of Bank Particulars Amount as Amount as Amount of Whether 

per books of reported in Difference return/state 

account the quarterly ment 

return/state subsequentl 

ment y rectified 

Inventories 1,325 1,342 (17) 

Trade 

Q 1 June 2023 Central Bank of lndia Receivables 432 479 (47) No 

Trade 

Payables 352 365 (13) 

Inventories 1,468 1,445 23 

Trade 

Q 2 September 2023 Central Bank of lndia Receivables 698 722 (24) No 

Trade 

Payables 198 207 (9) 

Inventories 1,413 1,446 (33) 

Trade 

Q 3 December 2023 Central Bank of lndia Receivables 554 597 (43) No 

Trade 

Payables 501 516 (15) 

Inventories 1,565 1,455 110 

Trade 

Q 4 March 2024 Central Bank of lndia Receivables 652 638 14 Yes 

Trade 

Payables 612 549 63 
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Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

ASAT ASAT 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 
8 : T RADE PAYABLES 
Due ta Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 42.58 -

Others !han Micro and Small Enterprise 1,026.60 912.43 

1,069.18 912.43 

Disclosure in accordance with Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006: 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

As At As At 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Amt. Rs. Amt. Rs. 
Principal amont remaininr:i unpaid and interest due thereon 
- Princioal Amou nt 42.58 -

- lnterest - -

1 nterest paid in terms of Section 16 - -

1 nterest due and payable for the period of del av in pavment - -

lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

1 nterest due and pavable even in succeedina vears - -

Trade payables ageing schedule 

As at 31 March 2024 (Rs. ln Lacs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 Total 
1-2 Years 2-3 years 

year years 

(i) MSME 42.Sl - - - 42.5 

(ii) Others 722.9 32.6 29.0 241.9 1,026.6( 

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -

As at 31 March 2023 (Rs. ln Lacs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 Total 
1-2 Years 2-3 years 

year years 

(i) MSME - -

(ii) Others 459.91 442.1 2.6 7.6 912.4 

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -

* The Company has initiated the process of obtaining confirmation from suppliers relating the registration under the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The suppliers are not registered wherever confirmations are received and in other cases, The 

Company is not aware of their registration status and information as required by Schedule VI to the Act is not disclosed as it is not 

determinable. 

9 : OT HER CURRENT LIABI LIT IES 
Current maturities of long-term debts: 

From Banks - 38.64 
From other parties - Financial Institutions - -

Vebicle Loans 
Secured 

From Banks - -

Other Payables 115.02 119.39 
Statutory dues 90.51 55.62 
Unpaid Dividends 23.17 28.07 

Advance from Customers 374.50 454.53 

603.20 696.25 

10 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 
Provision 

Incarne Tax (Net of Tax paid) - -

Unpaid Expenses 4.10 0.94 
Proposed Dividend - -

Tax on Dividend - -

4.10 0.94 

4.10 0.94 
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11. Property, plant and equipment

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2022 

Translation Difference 

Additions 

Disposais 

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2022 

Translation Difference 

Depreciation for the period 

Disposais 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2023 

Translation Difference 

Additions 

Disposais 

Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2023 

:::=::::, ► 
> 

Translation Difference 

Depreciation for the period 

Disposais 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 

Land 

(Leaseho Building 

Id) 

221.68 1,028.29 
- -

- -

- -

221.68 1,028.29 

84.56 380.68 
- -

5.87 31.51 
- -

90.43 412.20 

131.25 616.09 

221.68 1,028.29 

- -

- -

- -

221.68 1,028.29 

90.43 412.20 

- -

5.87 31.51 

- -

96.30 443.71 

125.38 584.58 

Plant & Machinery 
Furniture 

Vehicles 
& Fixtures 

851.62 87.90 280.54 

0.36 0.56 0.20 

31.76 0.97 -

- - -

883.74 89.42 280.74 

628.88 76.92 95.27 

0.36 0.56 0.20 

23.41 2.94 31.37 

- - -

652.65 80.41 126.84 

231.09 9.01 153.90 

883.74 89.42 280.74 

(0.54) (0.55) (0.29) 

40.95 4.75 197.77 
- - 88.20 

924.15 93.62 390.01 

652.65 80.41 126.84 

(0.54) (0.55) (0.29) 

22.99 1.52 34.08 

- - 61.84 

675.10 81.38 98.79 

249.05 12.24 291.22 

Electrical 
Air 

Tools, 
Conditio 

lnstallati Jigs & Fix 
ns 

ons 

122.61 132.21 31.39 
- - -

- 6.88 0.23 
- - -

122.61 139.09 31.63 

110.06 103.34 22.72 
- - -

4.41 7.23 1.39 
- - -

114.46 110.57 24.11 

8.15 28.52 7.52 

122.61 139.09 31.63 
- - -

- 6.06 0.24 
- - -

122.61 145.16 31.86 

114.46 110.57 24.11 

- - -

1.93 8.55 1.39 

- - -

116.39 119.13 25.49 

6.22 26.03 6.37 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

Office 

Equipme Compute 

nt rs 

98.12 171.38 

0.16 (0.37) 

8.25 30.36 
- -

106.52 201.38 

86.82 112.46 

0.16 0.03 

3.53 22.67 
- -

90.52 135.16 

16.01 66.22 

106.52 201.38 

(0.24) (0.07) 

2.52 10.39 
- -

108.81 211.71 

90.52 135.16 

(0.24) (0.06) 

3.64 30.60 

- -

93.92 165.70 

14.89 46.01 

Total 

tangible 

assets 

3,025.75 

0.91 

78.45 
-

3,105.11 

-

1,701.71 

1.31 

134.33 
-

1,837.35 

1,267.76 

-

3,105.11 

(1.69) 

262.69 

88.20 

3,277.90 
-

1,837.35 

(1.68) 

142.08 

61.84 

1,915.91 

1,361.99 
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

ASAT ASAT 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

lRs.in Lacs\ lRs.in Lacs\ 

12 : NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS 
Trade / Other lnvestments 
lnvestment in Eguitll Instruments 

(i) Unquoted 1.09 1.09 
1,766 (1,766) Equity Shares of Usher Agro Ltd. 
(ii) Quoted 

13 (16) Equity Shares ofTCS Ltd. 0.06 0.06 
(iii) Mutual Funds 

DSP Merill Lynch Micro Cap Fund 0.95 0.95 
8 (8) HDFC Gold Exchange Bonds 0.24 0.24 
30 (30) KOTAK Gold Exchange Bonds 0.88 0.88 

3.23 3.23 

Market Value of Quoted lnvestments / Mutual Funds 16.08 11.22 

13: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 
Securjb{: Degosits 

Unsecured Considered Good 16.98 17.08 

Qth!ii!;r IQ:i;!n§ s;!nQ s;u;tvs;!n�§ 
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be recd. 

Unsecured Considered Good 
To Others - -

Advance Tax Paid 191.08 750 
Less : Provision for Taxes 190.04 1.04 705 44.67 

18.02 61.75 

14 : INVENTORIES 

Raw Materials & Components 1,414.27 961.75 
Goods in Transit - -

Finished and Semi-finished Goods 190.24 146.01 

1,604.52 1,107.76 

15: TRADE RECEIVABLES 
Unsecured Considered Good 
- For a period exceeding six months - 155.94 
- Others 854.55 663.78 

854.55 819.72 

854.55 819.72 

Trade Receivable stated above inc!ude debts due b)l: 
Directors - -

Other officers of the Company - -

Firm in which director is a partner - -

Company in which director is a member - - - -

As at 31 March 2024 (Rs. in Lacs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Total 

Less than 6 months 
6 months to 

1-2 Years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

1year years 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
698.E 1 70.0! 34.4 34.0 > 17.3! 854.5 

considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which 
- - -

have significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 
- - -

impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered 
- - -

good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
- - -

significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 
- -

impaired 

As at 31 March 2023 (Rs. in Lacs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars 6 months to More than 3 Total 

Less than 6 months 1-2 Years 2-3 years 
1year years 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
730. 7 40.0! 18.4 22.0 9.0C 819.7 

considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which 
- - -

have significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 
- - -

impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered 
- - -

good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
- - -

significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 
- - -

impaired 
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Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

AS AT AS AT 

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs.in Lacsl (Rs.in Lacsl 

16: CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 6.78 10.67 

Cheques, Drafts on hand - -

Other Bank Balances 

- On Current Accounts 2,290.36 2,750.85 

- On Unpaid Dividend Accounts 23.17 28.07 

- On Fixed DepositAccounts (On Margin on Bank Guarantees) 816.86 884.13 

3,130.39 3,663.05 

3,137.17 3,673.73 

17: SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Unsecured Considered Good 

Security Deposits - -

Other Loans and Advances: 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value ta be recd. 29.01 24.20 

Deposits & Recievables 108.37 32.36 

Advances to Suppliers 61.14 115.43 

Balance with Excise and Service Authorities 116.98 315.50 93.74 265.74 

315.50 265.74 

18: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

lnterest Accrued on lnvestments 15.25 7.17 

15.25 7.17 

19: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sale of Products 6,661.26 5,441.92 

Incarne From Services 122.73 112.96 

6,783.99 5,554.88 

Particulars of Sales of Products 

Ultrasonic Eqiupments 5,178.03 5,326.59 

Others 1,483.23 115.33 

6,661.26 5,441.92 

20 : OTHER INCOME 

Dividend Received 0.02 0.03 

lnterest Received 56.27 33.04 

Exchange Rate Fluctuation 56.84 185.13 

Sale of Scrap - -

Packing Charges (Net) - 2.72 

Miscellaneous Incarne 0.86 -

113.99 220.92 

21 : COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Opening Stock 961.75 1,049.89 

Add : Purchases 3,526.16 2,561.26 

4,487.91 3,611.16 

Less : Closing Stock 1,414.27 961.75 

3,073.63 2,649.41 

Details of Raw Materials Consumed 

Semi Conductor, Electronic Components, etc. 2,566.62 2,121.00 

Others 507.02 528.41 

3,073.63 2,649.41 

22 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROCESS 

Finished Goods / Work ln Progress: 

Closing Stock 190.24 146.01 

Less : Opening Stock 132.41 197.38 

(57.841 51.38 

23 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 

Directors' Remuneration 50.85 106.05 

KMP Remuneration 53.22 63.84 

Salaries, Wages and Benefits 1,095.72 919.46 

Contribution ta Provident Fund and Other Funds 46.28 45.44 

Staff Welfare Expenses 37.31 60.06 

Gratuity Expenses 16.73 44.01 

1,300.12 1,238.86 
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Particulars 

24 : OTHER EXPENSES 

Electricity Charges 
lnsurance Charges (Net) 
Labour Charges 
Packing Charges (Net) 
Installation Charges 
Testing Charges 
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 
Research & Development Expenses 
Commission on Sales 

Selling Expenses 
Advertisement & Publicity 
Transport & Delivery Charges 
Agency Expenses 
Rates, Taxes & Water Charges 
Printing & Stationery Expenses 
Communication Expenses 

Travelling & Conveyance Charges 
Legal & Professional Charges 
Motor Car Expenses 
Rent 
Sundry Expenses 
Auditors' Remuneration: 
Audit Fees 
Tax Audit Fees 
Certification & Others 
Membership & Subscription 
Bad Debls Written Off 
CSR Expenses 

Exchange Rate Fluctuation 

Director Sitting Fees 

Preliminary Expenses W/off 

Guaranttee Commission Paid to Director 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assais 

Loss on outward remittance scam 

25 : FINANCE COST 

lnterest Expense 
On Working Capital Facilities 
On Term Loans 
On Others 

Other Borrowing Costs 
Bank & Finance Charges 

26 : EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARES 

Basic/ Diluted Earnings per Share 

ProfiV(Loss) attribulable to Equity shareholders 

Weighted average number of equity shares 

Basic Earnings Per Share 

Face value per Share 

27 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS 

a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 
Counter Guarantee given to Bankers in respect of Bank Guarantee furnished by them. 

b) The Company sells certain products wilh warranties. ln the opinion of the management 
the expected liabilily, if any, is not significant and hence, il is no! provided. 

c) Please refer note as annexed as annexure 2(A) 

Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

ASAT ASAT 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

IRs. ln Lacsl IRs. ln Lacsl 

64.95 61.21 

31.28 29.72 

46.96 40.55 

51.82 38.94 
- 0.02 

0.06 0.71 

106.20 109.31 

94.81 77.87 

143.14 47.60 

56.54 41.50 

24.80 32.36 

130.13 89.76 

4.17 19.72 

5.68 5.04 

7.10 6.81 

18.48 16.94 

134.02 99.52 

190.36 71.27 

21.86 21.49 

113.71 110.55 

20.03 23.50 

2.28 2.30 

0.75 0.75 

3.25 6.28 3.25 6.30 

40.03 2.28 

64.63 76.53 

13.39 11.00 

34.29 22.52 

2.00 2.00 

- 5.46 

50.00 -

2.83 -

- 6.18 

1,479.57 1,076.63 

49.74 50.03 
2.05 5.08 

0.11 25.93 

51.91 81.03 

33.99 25.98 

85.89 107.01 

594.23 381.42 

69,66,524 35,30,978 

8.53 10.80 

10.00 10.00 

370.21 231.08 

- -
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Roop Ultrasonix Ltd. 

28 : RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

(a) Related party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18 - "Related Party Disclosures" are given 

below: 

1. Directors : 

a) Dr. A. S. Trivedi 

b) Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi 

c) Mr. Kodur Rajagopalan Puthavitil 

d) Mrs. Karishma Vipul Tanna 

e) Mr. Natwarlal Vallabhdas Trivedi 

Il. Key Managerial Personnel: 

a) Mr. Aditya A. Trivedi 

Ill. Relative of Directors : 

a) Dr. A. S. Trivedi (HUF)

b) S S  Trivedi Foundation 

c) Kay lmpex Pvt Ltd 

d) Tetrasonix LLC 

e) 3A lnnovative Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

f) Elia Tech LLP

g) Adiv Pure Nature Products Pvt. Ltd.

(b) Details of transactions with related parties: 

(Rs. ln Lacs) 

Transactions for the Amount receivable (payable) 

Particulars Year ended on As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Sales of Goods & AMC 

Tetrasonix LLC - 11.77 4.81 11.77 

Purchase of Goods and Services 

Kav lmoex Pvt Ltd 5.10 13.04 - 0.93 

Rent Paid 

Mrs. Ruoa A. Trivedi 6.14 5.95 - -

Deposit taken / (repaid) from Directors 

Dr.A.S. Trivedi 50.00 / (50.00) 

A.S. Trivedi (HUF) 30.00 / (30.00) 10.00 / (114.00) - -

Mrs. Rupa A. Trivedi - (14.50) - -

Deposit taken / (repaid) from Key Mana! 1erial Personnel 

Mr. Aditya A. Trivedi - 5.50 / (5.50) - -

Remuneration Paid to Directors 

Dr. A.S. Trivedi 25.60 80.80 - -

Mrs. Ruoa A. Trivedi 25.25 25.25 - -

Sittina Fees Paid to Directors 

Mr. Kodur Raiaqopalan Puthavitil 2.00 2.00 - -

Remuneration Paid to Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr. Aditya A. Trivedi 53.22 63.84 - -

lnterest Paid to Directors 

A.S. Trivedi - 0.92 - -

Mrs. Ruoa A. Trivedi - 0.84 - -

lnterest Paid to Relative of Directors 

A.S. Trivedi (HUF) - 10.89 - -

lnterest Paid to Kev Manaaerial Personnel 

Mr. Aditva A. Trivedi - 0.10 - -

Commission Paid 

Dr. A.S. Trivedi 50.00 - (47.50) -

Tetrasonix LLC 44.39 - (22.65) -

CSR Exoenses : 

SS Trivedi Foundation 13.00 11.00 - -

------�--
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29 : DI SCLO SURE AS PE R ACCO UNTING STANDARD 19 ON "LEASE": 
Where the ComRanx is a Lessee 
i) The Company has taken office premises under operating lease or leave and licence agreements. These are generally cancellable and range between 11 
months & five years. under leave and licence, or longer for other leases and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. 
ii) Lease / Rent payments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 'Rent' under 'Other expenses' in Note 24. 
iii) Future minimum lease rentai payable is as 
under: 

ASAT ASAT 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs) (Rs. ln Lacs) 
Within 1 Vear 29.41 110.55 
After 1 Year but befor-e 5 Years 118.08 442.20 
After 5 Years - -

iv) Land taken on lease have been amortised over the respective lease period and Rs. 5.87 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 5.87 Lacs) has been amortised du ring th 

30 : RE SEARCH & DEVE LOPMENT EXPENSE S 
The company has an ln house R & D Centre. The details of revenue expenditure incurred during the year by the said R & D Centre and to charged 
Statement of Profit & Loss Account is as under: 

YEAR ENDE D YEAR ENDE D 
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

(Rs. ln Lacs\ (Rs. ln Lacs\ 
Employee Benefit Expenses 52.93 52.93 
Cost of Materials consumed 8.79 8.79 
Other Expenses 33.09 16.15 

94.81 77.87 

31 : FINANCIAL AND O THE R DE RIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 
Foreian Currencv exoosure that are not hedaed bv the derivative instruments: 

Balance As at March 31, 
Balance As at March 31, 2024 2023 

Particulars Currency ln Foreign 
Amount (Rs. 

ln Foreign 
Amount(Rs. 

Currency (in 
ln Lacs) 

Currency (in 
ln Lacs) 

Lacs) Lacs) 
Exoort Trade Receivables US$ 1.91 159.14 2.75 226.22 

Euro 0.31 28.31 /0.09) (8.00 

CHF 1.45 133.77 1.06 94.93 

lmoort Trade Pavables US$ /0.05 (4.56 /0.23) (19.10 
Euro 0.26 22.98 0.09 7.80 
CHF (0.04 (3.24 (0.24) (21.91 

32 : ADDI TI ONAL INFO RMATI ON REQUI RE D BY SCHE DULE I ll TO THE ACT: 

31-Mar-24 
Partlculars Net Assets i.e Total Assets 

Share in Profit/ (Loss) 
minus Total Liabilities 

As a% As a% 
Consolidated NetAssets Consolidated Profit/(Loss) 

Name of the companies NetAssets Profit & Loss 
Parent Company 
Rooo Telsonic Ultrasonix Ltd. 123.50 5,872.15 108.44 644.40 

Foreian Subsidiarv Comoanv 
RTUL Ultrasonix (Thailand) Co. Ltd. (15.18 (721.69 (3.37) (20.03 

RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. BHD. <B.32 (395.59 (5.07) (30.15 

Current Year Total 100.00 4,754.88 100.00 594.23 

31-Mar-23 
Particulars Net Assets i.e Total Assets 

Share in Profit/ (Loss) 
minus Total Liabilities 

As a% As a% 
Name of the companies Consolidated NetAssets Consolidated Profit/(Loss) 

NetAssets Profit & Loss 
Parent Company 
Roop Telsonic Ultrasonix Ltd. 124.74 5,565.71 100.04 381.55 

Foreian Subsidiarv Comoanv 
RTUL Ultrasonix (Thailand) Co. Ltd. (16.42 (732.49 6.10 23.27 

RTUL Ultrasonix SDN. BHD. (8.32 (371.39 (6.14) (23.41 

Current Year Total 100.00 4,461.83 100.00 381.42 

33 : Corporate social responsibility expenses. 

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company up to 31March 2024: Rs.13.39 Lacs ( up to 31 March 2023: Rs 11.00 Lacs). 

b. Amou.nt soent during the Year on: , Rs. ln Lacs l 

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Construction/acauisition of anv asset - - - -

On n11rnoses other than above 13.39 11.00 - -

Total 13.39 11.00 - -

c. Related party transaction in relation to corporate social responsibility: 13.00 Lacs (31 March 2023: 11.00 Lacs) 

d. Unspent as on 31 March 2024 : Nil (up to 31 March 2023: Nil). 

------�--
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34 - The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 

/al 
/bl 

(c) 

/dl 
/el 
/fl 
(Q) 
/hl 
(i) 

(il 

(kl 
m 

Note: 

(1) 
(a) 
(b) 
(c) 

(d) 

(e) 
(f) 
(g) 
(h) 
(i) 

U) 
(k) 

(1) 

(Il) 
(m) 
(n) 
(o) 
(p) 

Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Variance 
Current ratio /al 2.50 2.49 0% 
Gross Debt / Eauitv ratio /bl&/ml 0.15 0.18 -22% 
Net Debt / Equitv ratio (c)&(m) -0.51 -0.65 -26% 
Debt Service Coveraoe ratio /dl& ln) 8.42 5.04 40% 
Return on Eauitv (ROE) ( e) & {a) 0.13 0.10 26% 
lnventorv turnover ratio (fl 5.00 4.72 6% 
Trade receivables turnover ratio (Q) 8.10 7.18 11% 
Trade oavables turnover ratio /hl 4.77 4.80 -1% 
Net caoital turnover ratio m 1.91 1.58 17% 

Net orofit ratio (i)&(ol 0.09 0.07 23% 
Return on capital emploved (ROCE) (kl 0.42 0.40 5% 
Return on investment <ROil m 6.59 3.52 47% 

Formula used for calculation 

Current Ratio= Current assets / (Current liabilities - Current maturities of long term borrowings) 
Gross Debt / Equity Ratio= (Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings + Non-current lease liabilities + Current lease liabilities) / Total equity 
Net Debt / Equity Ratio = Net debt / Total equity 
Net Debt = (Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings + Non-current lease liabilities + Current lease liabilities - (Cash, cash equivalents and Other bank balances + Margin 
money (non-current) + lnvestment in Quoted Mutual Funds + Amount held as margin money against borrowings)) 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) = EBITDA/ (lnterest paid + Other finance charges paid + Principal repayments of long-term borrowings + Payment of lease liabilities) 

Return of Equity (RoE) = Net profit after taxes/ Average Equity 
lnventory turnover ratio= Revenue from operations / Average Inventories 
Debtors turnover ratio = Revenue from operations / Average Trade and unbilled receivables 
Trade payables turnover ratio = Total expenses excluding Employee benefit expenses / Average Trade payables 
Net capital turnover ratio= Revenue from operations / Working capital where Working capital= Current Assets - (Current liabilities - Current maturities of long term borrowings) 

Net profit ratio= Net Profit/ (Loss) after taxes/ Total income 
Return on capital employed (ROCE)= (Profit/ (Loss) before tax + Finance costs + Depreciation on Right-of-use assets) / (Total Equity - Intangible Assets - Intangible Assets 
under development + Net Debt) 
Return on investment (ROI) = lncome generared from investments / lime weighted average investments 

Reasons for variances: 
Decrease in borrowing has resulted variance in Net Debt / Equity ratio & Gross Debt / Equity ratio 
Principal payment of Long Term Debt during the year and increase in profit resulted into variation of Debt service coverage ratio 
Movement in Return on equity, ROCE and Net Profit ratioo are due ta increase in profit during the year. 
Reason for deviation in Return on investment (ROI) is due ta increase in interest incarne. 

35. Please refer note as annexed as annexure 2(A) 

36. There are no significant events that would require adjustrnent or disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Staternents. 

37. Other matters 

a. The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property; 

b. The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off; 

c. The Group is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Restriction on number of Layers) Ru les, 2017 (as amended); 

d. The Group has not traded or invested in Crypta currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year; 

e. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (lnterrnediaries)with the understanding 
that the lnterrnediary shall: 

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any rnanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultirnate Beneficiaries; 

f. The Group has not received any fund frorn any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding that the Group shall: 

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any rnanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultirnate Beneficiaries) 
or 

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultirnate Beneficiaries; 

g. The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as incarne du ring the 
year in the tax assessrnents under the Incarne Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incarne Tax Act, 1961; 

38 : Figures of the previous year have been regrouped and rearranged to confirrn with this year's grouping wherever necessary. 

For PARIKH& PARIKH 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 107526W 

Milan G. Parikh 
Proprietor 
M. No.: 38557 
UDIN:24038557BK AIUH1644 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : 15th Oct., 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
ROOP ULTRASONIX LTD. 
( Formerly known as ROOP TELSONIC ULTR ASONIX LTD.) 
CIN : U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Dr. Anant S. Trivedi 
Chairman & Director 
DIN : 00575030 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 15th Oct., 2024 

Powerhouse Of Ultrasonic Technology 

Rupa A. Trivedi 
Whole-time Director 
DIN : 00370081 
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ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED 

Regd. Office: N41, Nandkishore lndustrial Estate, Off Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400093. 
CIN: U33120MH1982PLC026800 Tel. No.: 02 2-42111500 

E- mail: secretarial@rtulgroup.com Website: www.rtulgroup.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

42
nd 

Annual General Meeting

Name of the attending Member (in Block Letters) 
Member's Folio Number / DP ID & Client ID 

No. of shares held 
Name of Proxy (in Block Letter) to be filled if the Proxy attends 
instead of the member 

1 hereby record my presence at the 42
nd 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on
Monday, December 23, 2024 at 10.00 a.m. at Corporate Office of the Company at 803 C, 32, Corporate 
Avenue, Off Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 093. 

Signature of Member/Power of Attorney Holder/ 
Authorised Representative/ Proxy 
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ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED 
CIN: U33120MH1982PLC026800 

Registered Office: A/41, Nandkishore lndl. Estate, Off. Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 

093, lndia. (022) 4211 1500 Email: secretarial(@rtulgroug.com 

FORM NO. MGT-12 

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ru/e 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Ru/es, 2014] 

BALLOT PAPER 

S No Particulars Details 
1. Name(s) of the First Named Shareholder: 

(ln Black Letters) 
2. Postal Address: 

3. Registered folio No./ *Client ID No. (*Applicable ta investors 
holdina shares in dematerialized forml: 

4. Glass of Shares: 

I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolution(s) as set out in the Notice of the 42 nd Annual General Meeting ('AGM') 
of Company scheduled ta be held on Monday, December 23, 2024 al 10:00 a.m. (1ST) at 803 -C, 32, Corporate Avenue, Mahal lndustrial 
Estate, Off Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E ), Mumbai - 400 093, which is proposed ta be placed for consideration of members al the 
aforesaid AGM of the Company, by conveying my/our assent and/or dissent ta the said Resolution(s) in the relevant box as stat ed herein 
below: 

Resolution No. Resolution No. of 1/We assent 1/We dissent 
Equity to the to the 
Share(s) resolution resolution 
held (For)* (Against)* 

Ordinarv Business 
1. Ta consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated 

Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2024, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; 

2. Appointment of a director Mr. Kodur Rajagopalan Puthanvitil (DIN: 
00592972), liable to retire by rotation 

3. Ta appoint M/s Parikh & Parikh as the statutory auditors of the 
companv. 

Special Business 
4. Ta consider and approve appointment of Dr. Anan! S. Trivedi (DIN 

00575030) as Managing Director of the Company for a period of five 
vears from Januarv 01, 2025 ta December 31, 2029 

5. Ta consider and approve the related partv transactions 
6. Ta consider and approve fees for professional assistance in continuing 

guarantee ta be offered by Dr. Trivedi 
*Please put a tick mark ( ✓) in appropriate column against the resolution(s) indicated above. ln case of member/proxy wishes his/her vote ta be 
used differently, he/she should indicate the number of shares under the columns 'For' and/or 'Against'. 

Place: 
Date: 

Signature of Shareholder/ Power of Attorney 
Holder/ Authorised Representative 

Note: Please read the instructions given below carefu//y before exercising your vote 

INSTRUCTIONS 

Process and manner for Members opting to vote by using the Ballot Paper: 
1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 
6. 

7. 

8. 

n 
-·

Please complete and sign this Ballot Paper and drop in the locked ballot box placed in the meeting hall for voting purpose with respect of 
the AGM of the company as scheduled on Monday, December 23, 2024. 
The Ballot Paper should be signed by the Member as per the specimen signature registered with the Company/Depository Participants. 
ln case of joint holding, the Ballot Paper should be completed and signed by the first named Member and in his/her absence, by the next 
named joint holder. There will be one Ba Ilot Paper for every Folio/Client ID irrespective of the number of joint holders. A Power of 
Attorney ("POA'') holder may vote on behalf of a Shareholder, mentioning the registration number of the POA registered with th e 
Company or enclosing an attested cap y of the POA registered with the company or enclosing therewith duly attested/notarized copy of 
the POA. Exercise of vote by Ballot Paper is net permitted through proxy. 
For shares held by corporate and institutional shareholders (companies, mutual funds, trusts, societies, etc.), the duly completed Ballot 
Paper should be accompanied by a certified !rue copy of the relevant Board Resolution/Authorization together with attested sp ecimen 
signature(s) of the duly authorized signatory(ies). 
Votes should be cast in case of each resolution, either in faveur or against, by putting the tick mark ( ✓) in the column provided in the 
Ballot Paper for assent / dissent. 
A Shareholder need net use all the votes or cas! all the votes in the same way. 
The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion ta their shares of the paid-up equity capital of the Company as on Friday, July 28, 
2023 ("Cul-off Date") as per the Register of Members and as in Papered ta the Company by the depositories in case of Beneficial 
Owners. 
A M  ember may request for a duplicata physical copy of Ballot Paper, if sa required, by sending an e -mail ta 
secretarial@rtulgroui:1.com mentioning their Folio / DP ID and Client ID No. However, duly filled in an d signed duplicata Ballot Paper 
should reach the Scrutinizer net later than the date specified in Serial No. 7 above. 
Unsigned, incomplete, improperly or incorrectly tick marked Ballot Papers will be rejected. A Ballot Paper will aise be rejec ted if il is 
received torn, defaced or mutilated ta an extent which makes il difficult for the Scrutinizer ta identify either the Member o r when il is net 
ascertainable that vote(s) have been cas! by member (s) in faveur or against the resolution or when the signature�) of member(s) cannot 
be verified. 
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Rout Map to the Venue 

Venue : 803-C, 32, Corporate Avenue, Mahal lndustrial Estate, Off Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 093. 

Landmark : Near Paper Box 

Distance from Andheri Station (East) via Andheri-Kurla Road/ Sir Mathuradas Vasanji Raod 2.9 km 
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Roop Ultrasonix Limited

Notes

(Formerly known as Roop Telsonic Ultrasonix Limited)

Regd. Off. : A/41, Nandkishore Industrial Estate, Off. Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400 093, India
Corporate Office : 803/C , 32 Corporate Avenue, Off. Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) , Mumbai – 400 093, India

Tel. : 022 - 42111500    Fax : 42111505    E-mail : support@rtulgroup.com    Web : www.rtulgroup.com



Roop UI trasonix Ltd. 

ROOP ULTRASONIX LIMITED 

A-41, Nandkishore lndustrial Estate, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai -400093

Dear Shareholder, 
If you wish to accept Electronics Clearing Service for your Dividend (applicable from next Year), kindly 
fill-in and submit at our Registered office Address as mentioned above. 

SHAREHOLDER DETAILS FORM 

(To be filled in by the first holder, in case of joint holding) 

Name of Shareholder: 
------------------------

My/Our Folio no./ Client ID & DP ID No.: _______________ _ 

Particulars of Bank Account and Other Details : 

Bank Name: 
------

Branch Name & Address: 
------------------------

Telephone: __________ _ / Mobile Number: 
----------

MICR code: 
-----------

/ IFSC No.: 
------------

Account type (Current/Saving) : _____ / Account No.: ___________ _ 

First holder's e-mail ID: 
------------------------

PAN No.: 
---------

/ AADHAR No. : 
---------

Signature of the Shareholder 
Please attach a photocopy of a cheque or a blank cancelled cheque issued by your bank, relating to the 

above account, for verification of 9-digit MICR Code. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: 
As per the requirements of the lncome Tax Act, 1961, you are requested to furnish your PAN Number 
and Aadhar Number along with the self-certified copies of both at the earliest so as to enable us to 
update our records accordingly. 
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